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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2024.

Although the investments in the private sector continue to
be conservative due to worldwide economic uncertainties
and geo-political tensions, tenders in the public sector have
become active as the Hong Kong government has made
commitments to increase public housing supply.

As mentioned in the latest Policy Address, the Chief Executive
has moved ahead a few major development plans to increase
and speed up housing and land supply in quantity and quality;
to build up a third Central Business District; and to develop
Hong Kong into a new international innovation and technology
city. New development plans include the Northern Metropolis,
Kau Yi Chau Artificial Island and Tseung Kwan O Area 137.

The Chief Executive also plans to take forward three major road
projects and three strategic railway projects, including Northern
Metropolis Highway, Shatin Bypass, Tseung Kwan O-Yau Tong
Tunnel, a new Central Rail Link, Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western
Rail Link and Tseung Kwun O Southern Line to bring about a
highly inter-connected and accessible road network and rail
system to support the future development of Hong Kong.

The government is proceeding with building a “Northern
Metropolis” in Yuen Long and North districts covering a total
land area of about 300 square kilometers. The entire project
is expected to take 20 years to complete. The new metropolis
accounts for more than one quarter of Hong Kong’s land area
and is expected to accommodate one-third of the population.
It will involve a multitude of new infrastructure projects, such
as transportation links, as well as residential and commercial
buildings. In addition, some 330,000 public housing units
will be built by 2032 to ease the long waiting time for public
housing. The government said that they have secured 350
hectares of land to meet the estimated public housing demand
for around 301,000 units in the coming 10-year period.
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The government’s public housing construction program has
been updated by the Housing Authority on an annual basis.
The number of flat units and locations of development are
specified. Besides, the 10-year Hospital Development Plan
and a series of other hospital development and improvement
projects are underway for the Hospital Authority to modernise
its services and meet the growing healthcare needs of the
community.

The directors of the Company support the government to
expedite the implementation of public works projects and
further hope that the government can grab the good timing
to expand the infrastructure investments for the future of
Hong Kong’s development. This is vital to the sustainability of
Hong Kong as a leading international city and to tap into the
opportunities arising from the development of innovation and
technology hub in the Greater Bay Area. To support the huge
demand of the construction market, we also hope that the
government can sort out solutions to mitigate the shortage of
labour and industrial land in a speedy manner.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for over 40 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience.
These have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the
market that we experienced the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

27 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”/“2024”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2023 (the “Previous Year”/“2023”).

BUSINESS REVIEW
Group Revenue and Major Projects
The Group’s revenue for the Year increased 10% to HK$458

million (2023: HK$417 million) which was mainly contributed by
Kai Tak Public Housing (2022) project.

As at 31 March 2024
Completion status

#202453831H

TR BT

Kai Tak Public Housing (2022) 55%
MEAERE (2022F)

Kai Tak Public Housing (2024) 2%

BEAZEE (2024%F)

Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with
reference to internal estimates based on currently available

information, and may be subsequently revised.
Kai Tak Public Housing (2022)

This project was awarded in about July 2022, with contract
value of approximately HK$970 million (including contingencies
and provisional sums), for bored pile, socketed H-piles and pile
cap works of a public housing development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This project contributed to about 81% the Group’s revenue
for the Year. The Group has relied on this project as the major
source of revenue for the Year. However certain parts of the
construction works have to be postponed until and when the
contract employer has formulated a practicable solution to
tackle with the complicated ground conditions of this project. It
is expected that additional contract sums will be awarded after
the solution is agreed which involves additional construction
works.

Kai Tak Public Housing (2024)

This is a new project awarded in about March 2024, with
contract value of approximately HK$454 million, for bored pile
works of a public housing development.

This project contributed only about 2% to the Group’s revenue
for the Year because it was just commenced around the end of
the financial year.

Other projects

A few other projects contributed to about 17% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The directors of the Company believe that the Hong Kong
Government is going to move in full steam on the development
plans mentioned in the Policy Address and huge opportunities
will be brought to the construction industry in the near future.
The Group foresees further improvement in the utilisation of
equipment and labour in the coming year on the ground that
we already have certain major contracts on hand and more
new tenders are available in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Investment in a property holding company

In March 2017, the Group acquired 5% equity interest in
a property holding company, Gold Champion Enterprises
Limited (“Gold Champion”). The purpose is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore opportunities in property
investment or property development. During the year, Gold
Champion has received enquiries from parties interested in
the land development or interested to acquire the land parcel.
Meanwhile, in view of the slowdown of the economy and the
property market, Gold Champion will be patient to see the
further development in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS
Gross Profit and Margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of HK$32 million for the
Year, which represented an improvement as compared to
the gross loss of HK$1 million in for the Previous Year. Unlike
the Previous Year where a time gap appeared between the
completion of the last project and the commencement of a
new project, the Group were occupied throughout the Year by
Kai Tak Public Housing project (2022) and other projects. In
view of the increase in productivity of labour and equipment
of the Group, gross profit margin of 7% was generated after
deducting the direct and indirect contract costs and machinery
depreciation for the Year.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

RERYEER 2 F]

R20179F3R - AEENE —HDEER
RAEBEEARIA (T2 ]) H5%MK
- REBEEAMIE/BIR - BHEMER
BRIMEHRAOME - RAFE - £EHK
AEEETLHMABEAE EWREERR
MALTER - BEERE  @EBEREWED
BREZT RS OREHSNE—
HERE -

B35 E B R D47
EMREME

& B R A F E 815 E $132,000,0007%
JC 0 8 & & £ 181,000,000 7T B AT 2K
Z - ARREFREEERIHEMIEER
FMEHBEEES  AEERFEEFEH
FETREAEFEEHEE (20224) R A
tIEE - ERAEBOLE N REEEE
TIENN - R B RS QRN AR
E®R KNFEHBTRHENE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Net Profit

However, as a result of the postponement of Kai Tak Public
Housing project (2022) as mentioned above, the revenue and
gross profit generated during the Year was not enough to
cover all the administrative and finance expenses of the Group.
The net amount of finance expenses also increased about 55%
due to increase in loan interest rates compared with that of
the Previous Year. Therefore, the Group recorded a net loss of
HK$28 million for the Year (2023: HK$31 million). In fact, the
net loss has narrowed down substantially as compared with
that of the Previous Year if the other income of HK$16 million
and the reversal of impairment losses of HK$7 million, both
one-off nature, were excluded from the Previous Year’s result
for comparison.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

The Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.4 times (2023: 1.5 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$86 million (2023: HK$197 million).
Net borrowings were HK$154 million (2023: HK$99 million),
while the net gearing ratio was 33% (2023: 20%).

Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and borrowings.
During the Year, the Group had a net cash outflow of HK$33
million used in operating activities (2023: HK$58 million).
Taken into account the cash balances together with bank
loans facilities available, the Group’s daily operations had been
financially sound throughout the Year.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s net current assets were
HK$80 million (2023: HK$128 million) and current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.4 times (2023: 1.5
times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$86 million (2023: HK$197 million)
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Cash and bank
balances decreased mainly because of operating costs and
repayment of bank borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$140 million (2023: HK$196 million)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Borrowings generally
include short-term and long-term bank loans bearing floating
interest rates. Of the total borrowings, HK$62 million (2023:
HK$94 million) were for short-term bank loans and HK$57
million (2023: HK$52 million) were for the current portion of
long-term bank loans with maturity dates within 12 months.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had a net gearing (net
borrowings divided by total equity) of 33% (2023: 20%). For
the purpose of calculating the Group’s net gearing ratio, net
borrowings refer to the total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank balances.

The Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2024 was
approximately HK$471 million (2023: HK$500 million).

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and leases. During
the Year, the Group invested HK$15 million in machinery
and equipment (2023: HK$32 million). As at 31 March 2024,
the Group’s capital commitments relating to purchase of
machinery and equipment was nil (2023: nil). During the Year,
save as disclosed herein, the Group did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had plant and equipment
of carrying amounts over HK$514 million in total, which
consisted of an extensive range of machinery and equipment
for foundation construction works. This fleet of plant and
equipment enables the Group to undertake both public and
private sector projects in order to generate revenue and profit
for the Group. The management considers that the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use of these assets are
higher than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment
provision is necessary.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2024, the net book amount of plant and
equipment HK$109 million (2023: HK$62 million) was pledged
for long-term bank loans. None of the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2023:
none).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2024, save for guarantee of performance
bonds relating to a foundation works and ancillary services
project of the Group of approximately HK$29 million (2023:
two projects of approximately HK$7 million and HK$29 million),
the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities. The
performance bonds are expected to be released in accordance
with the terms of the respective construction contracts.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Other than the
purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars, the Group was
not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk and had
not employed any financial instrument for hedging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERWED T

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had about 325 (2023:
301) employees. The remuneration package we offer to
our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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EEERWED T

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Our Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the
ISO 14001 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2024.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2024.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.

THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.
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TEERRE

The Board currently comprises 8 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. The posts
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun
Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation of duties
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the
Group’s business and oversee the management. The directors
bring a good balance of skills and experience to the Company.
The independent non-executive directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment on the development,
performance and risk management of the Group. The directors
have been made fully aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to shareholders.

The Company has in place effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.
Independent non-executive directors are well-represented on
the Board, accounted for about 50% of board seats and with
at least one with accounting or related financial management
expertise. Besides, the Chairman encourages open discussion
amongst directors, and solicits independent perspectives
from the independent non-executive directors in particular.
In addition, the Chairman has separate meeting at least once
every year with the independent non-executive directors
to ensure their voices are being heard effectively. All board
members also have access to the Company Secretary and
independent professional advice to assist them in performing
their duties to the Company, at the Company’s expense. The
Board has reviewed the implementation of such mechanisms
for the year ended 31 March 2024 and is of the view that they
have been effective.

The executive directors and the independent non-executive
directors have been appointed on specific term of not more
than three years. Notwithstanding the term of appointments,
the articles of association of the Company provides that every
director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. At each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time will retire from
office by rotation and being eligible for re-election by the
shareholders.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EEeRRBERB\EKE HEEKLK
ERREREAFRIEZNSREELER
FE|—&f e ARBEF RITRARBAL D
AARBIRASLE R BIRESEAEEE - EF
BEEHEFEMTRARBEERER
SEEBLEBEEER UASRBEZH
Mo T - EER/ARRG RO ERRER
K BUFRTEFTAERASEMH
&~ RN AR E IR E L B A 6 F AR
Bt EFERORHIKRELARREA
HERMET -

RARIBER I BT  BRES SN
BEBIUERMER BIUFNTES
FEESFPHEARRE HEFSRMAD
50% ' BELB—ZEA LR SEENE
EWMEEME - I ERBEBHES M
EITARNW® - WERIBCRB I IERNTE
EMBEVEE I ERBFELESB
MIEMITEERIT NEBEE  UER
BRERMMNER - MTEEEFEKREN
AUEBARWERBYNEXEER
B MEITHAARNBRE - EAAR
NAEE EEFGERIZERGTEHSE
2024 3A3THILFEMEMRER - LR
BZEWBITT BN -

HITESMBUFNTEFCEREITS
R=ZFOHETEEH - BEmZTETHwM -
AABEBERMRRE  BREFAE
LEBZF-RNERBFAELRE-R
BERRBFARGL =02 —HKEIE
ERHRERTLISEREIRREESE
(Ea



Corporate Governance Report

TRERHRE
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Board meetings o

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 BE2024F3H3IBLLFE EE2LH

March 2024, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors THREH NEBFRIT—R - 2RESF
attended these meetings, at which business development, HMEHESSH TES FIRESLEE -
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks WEERE  ERELMEBEANEEBH S
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed. ERETRR - FTE SRR R EF S

All important matters that are significant to the interest of the SEEANBEESTE{(IRHESTEEZME
Company’s shareholders are reserved by the Board for its T OBEENERIEREENFEENA
review and decision, including but not limited to the approval HAZEAS IRBER  UNIRIE ETAREIZAE
of annual and interim results of the Group, dividend policy, L?/A SIHERTHHEES S RETH
connected transactions and discloseable transactions that are 5 e

mﬂ*

subject to announcement or reporting requirement pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2024
REZ2024F3ANBLFEHBELESS CETEE
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exg ENZEe® REZ8E FMzEe  RRAF
Ef - Ef Ef N1

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2R A 4/4 - 11 11 11

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok BRI L 4/4 - - - 11

Mr. Lau Chun Ka BRR £ 4/4 - - - 171

Ms. Leung Lai So REBHLL 4/4 - - - 11

Ms. Lau Pui Shan* Sm &t - - - - -

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTEES

Professor Wong Sue-Cheun, Roderick F2H 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1 11

Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERESE 4/4 2/2 1 1 il

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBEE 4/4 2/2 11 11 11

Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul® FEN K E 3/3 1/1 0/0 0/0 0/0

* Ms. Lau Pui Shan was appointed subsequent to 31 March * L2 T R2024FE3 31 B2 &S
2024, therefore her attendance in board meetings and annual F - ANEEFEEEeeZ NRERA
general meetings were not shown in the table above. FR@ZEBERWT RN EHKXS -

# Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul was appointed during the Year. The # IEMEENANEEEZT - X
numbers shown in the table above represent respectively the §\J§5(*/\E|MJ§2§1)§E/\§EEEHﬂ{é*ﬁ—ﬁg
meetings he attended out of the meetings he was entitled to HESEZPHEESE N -
attend after the date of his appointment.
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TEERRE

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2024, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made
up of 4 independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick, Mr. Chu Tak Sum and Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2024, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, risk register and internal control review report
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024, and have
a private meeting with external auditor without the presence
of the management; and the unaudited interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2023.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reMappointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of 5 members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul, being
independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
an executive director.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
are based on merit, and candidates are considered against
various objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business operations and
environment as well as the industry in which the Company
operates. The nomination committee will continuously monitor
and review the implementation of this policy and the progress
towards achieving the measurable objectives. In view of gender
diversity, the Company aims at maintaining at least 1 female
director in the Board.
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TEERRE

The Board currently comprises 7 male and 1 female director
and as such has achieved gender diversity in the Board.
The nomination committee considers that our directors have
extensive experience in different fields and professions that
are relevant to the Company’s business, which enable them to
provide valuable and relevant insights to the Board.

At the senior management level there were three male
members. We will aspire to have more female representation
amongst our management team as part of succession planning
and to increase female representation amongst our workforce.
The gender ratio of the male and female employees is
90% : 10% at as 31 March 2024. The Group has in place a
mechanism to support diversity across all facets including
but not limited to gender diversity. The Group treats every
employee equally, adheres to equal pay for equal work and
equal opportunities for different genders. However, we are also
mindful of the significant challenges in increasing the female
workforce as traditionally the construction market in which we
operate has a predominantly male workforce due to the labour
supply. We will continue to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female staff, as and when suitable candidates are
identified.

The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.
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The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all the directors and senior
management of the Group and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy for approval by the Board. It is made up of 5 members
including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman), Professor Wong Sue
Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, Mr. Pang Tat Choi,
Paul, being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau
Chun Ming, an executive director.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. In determining the
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management,
the Remuneration Committee has considered factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
performance and contributions of the Directors and the senior
management and the change in market conditions. Details
of the remuneration paid to the directors and the other five
highest paid employees are set out in notes 30(a) and 7(e),
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and are
functioning as intended. During the year, risk assessment and
management, purchase and expenditure cycle, and fixed asset
cycle were reviewed and found that adequate controls are in
place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 45001 and ISO 50001 to ensure that the Group’s services
meet the requisite health and safety, quality and environmental
requirements. During the year, the Group passed the audits
conducted by external consultants and renewed these
certificates. Upon completion of pile construction, the Group is
required to engage external professionals to conduct various
applicable tests on all piles based on the relevant contractual
requirements and ensure full compliance with customer
requirements. Subject to these piling records available to the
customers for their testing and inspection, the authorised
persons employed by the customers certify the value of the
works completed in the payment certificates issued to the
Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and monitoring
systems have already been embedded in the daily operations
of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system at its Board
meeting on 27 June 2024, including its financial, operational
and compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Audit Committee’s review included a consideration of
the internal control evaluations conducted by the executive
management, the findings of the external auditors during the
annual audit and the internal control review reported by an
internal control adviser engaged by the Company. There was
no material fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board
from all these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied
that the risk management and internal control systems were
adequate and implemented effectively during the year without
significant weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2024
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.5 million (2023: HK$1.6 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2023: HK$1.3 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2024. No fees were paid for
non-audit services to the independent auditor during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 44 to 58 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 31 of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate
to the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or
at the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2024.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market
and sets out various communication channels to ensure they
have the available information reasonably required to make
informed assessments of the Group’s strategy, operations
and financial performance. The annual shareholders’ meetings
and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company are the
primary forum for communication by the Company with its
shareholders in which the shareholders are able to have an
open dialogue with the Board. In addition, the Company’s
website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains extensive
company information which is easily accessible. Shareholders
are also provided with contact details of the Company, such
as telephone number, email address and postal address,
to enable them to make any queries or comments on the
Company at any time.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of its
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it was
implemented effectively during the year by maintaining an
on-going dialogue with shareholders, and the publication of
annual and interim reports, announcements and circulars
so as to provide extensive information on the Group’s
activities, business strategies and developments, and financial
position, as well as by making available all the corporate
communications published to the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.

TRERHRE

REERE

RARBAORRBAERRERTE B X
R EEARRTER o BMHZRLTIRE
EBBUR - BFAERE RIS EEERD
BEMN UREZEBRER  ERMD
PMMEEEMBEENNERHASEEK
RFERVBRENABETE - ARA
ZLBERRBAFRgRAMBRERETIAR
FIHEERFBEB, ITZYE  REAES
FEEBESNREGE o LN - AR T
(www.samwoo-group.com)& A Z = & A
AIER  FEEE - ARAIT AR R R M
AR TTE B ERE - EEMILRE T
ik - FEMPIEER MR R IR HEAE
HHIER -

ARFBRABRBBERNERIERN
URRRAFECERER  ARART
B ERRGERE - TIBFE NP IR
T AEBHARARENES - X
BEENBER ULMBHRRERFARE
B AR RA ARBBE R
BRARRBPE ETE -

REBR

ARBLEEFAFALEETNKELE - &
FERERMENREFERBZHERE
BREFBEIRN - REFEMBRSKFT &
EMEERS : REAMFUAREES A6
RAEANTMELEER EFSA KB
RERARBBREIRSLIKEBS - AT
RARR BT EARSRHBEAMTEE

SNMEEEEERAT
2024 F F

27


http://www.samwoo-group.com

28

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSHAEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 81, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation process,
research and development and formulation of overall corporate
policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, and the father of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 72, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 70, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.
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Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 50, is the chief financial officer
and an executive director. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries within the Group. She joined the Group in 1999.
She is responsible for financial accounting, treasury and
banking matters, investors relation and information technology
system of the Group. She obtained a bachelor’s degree of
commerce in accounting and finance and a master’s degree of
commerce in international business from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing
accountant of CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is the
daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, and a niece of Mr. Lau Chun
Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 79, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor's degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Professor
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
BExcellent Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1775) and
G&M Holdings Limited (stock code: 6038), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 76, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 45 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
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Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.

Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224) and SV Vision Limited
(stock code: 8429), each of which is a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited (stock code:
239) until 30 September 2022. Mr. Ip worked for Standard
Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001, specializing
in a range of corporate finance and advisory activities for
companies based in Hong Kong and China. From 1984
to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 69, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 68, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.
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Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 60, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 57, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, the Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an accredited mediator of The
Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He has over 30 years company
secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Environment, Social and Governance Report.
Information about the corporate culture and its implementation
is also available in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 59 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
144 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$2,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2024,
calculated under the Companies Act, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$199 million (2023: HK$199 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023. Details of share capital are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2024.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.
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The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

In view of the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules coming
into effect, the Company has decided not to grant any share
options under the Scheme and the Scheme will expire in
September 2024 without any outstanding share options.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So (passed away on 23 June 2024)

Ms. Lau Pui Shan (appointed with effect from 1 May 2024)

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick

Mr. Chu Tak Sum

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul (appointed with effect from 7 July 2023)

In accordance with article 83 and 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Ka, Ms. Lau Pui Shan and Mr. Ip Tin
Chee, Arnold will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick has tendered his
resignation as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2024 due to his age and
retirement from public services. Professor Wong has confirmed
that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is no
other matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 28 to 31.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
FriESRmEE0.0025E TN ERYEE (FR)

Name of director

Esps

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
BREA LS

1,200,000,000

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director  corporation

B4 B EE AR RHHE
Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
Bl E 61k

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
BRA L L 10,0008
Mr. Lau Chun Ming ~ SWAA Holdings Limited 1 share
BIRALE 1R

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REHLL 615

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

PBEHLL 10,0008%

Number of shares
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@ BEERARFOES:
Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
BERESE e

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
RREEFNEMA
71.43% Beneficiary of a

discretionary trust
PREERNZEA

b) EBFERARAEBEEMES -

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity

FREAL &4

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
RREFMEIHA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

SRETNEIRA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREFEMEIMA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PRETNZEA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
PRETHEHA
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2024, the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the Company:

Number of ordinary shares of

Name of shareholder

BRABM

Actiease Assets Limited

Silver Bright Holdings Limited

HK$0.0025 each held
Fris 8 R EE0.00255 T HY
ZEREE

Long position 1,200,000,000
#%£1,200,000,000%

Long position 1,200,000,000

#%£1,200,000,000%
SW AA Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#F7%1,200,000,0008%

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2024, 1,200,000,000 shares were held
by Actiease Assets Limited, a company wholly owned by
Silver Bright Holdings Limited which was indirectly owned
by a discretionary trust of which Ms. Leung Lai So was the
beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by SW AA
Holdings Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

TEBEA - N2024FE3A31H - AT A
T (FEBEARRESHEETHAE)RN
RARRD RBERGFHEBREES &
BB &P E336IKETHEEMELMAT
BRER AR

© TERERADAGEERAR -

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
ERESL 5%

71.43% Beneficial owner
EREBA

71.43% Interest of a controlled

corporation

ZEHEE MR

71.43% Trustee
ZFEA

1. W 20244%3 A31H
1,200,000,0008% % 1 B Silver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
¥ B ) A FActiease Assets
LimitedPT #% & - MSilver Bright
Holdings Limitedfi % 25 A &2
BHZTH2EETHERES -

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited &4
BIRAAE LRI 2 B REETHT
#L ASW AA Holdings Limitedf
100%+5 A °

EEEN
REARET IR EFEERANRA2E K
EREABOEBNERELTRITENE
#) o

THFERE

ZRRREMARBER - HEETIRE

HEA2014F9 158 M) T B M A
NEER T o



In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2024; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 100% (2023: 96%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 81% (2023: 61%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 71% (2023: 62%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 20% (2023: 16%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 26 September 2022, the Group entered into a bank facility
letter for a term of two years in the aggregate amount of
HK$100,000,000 for working capital purpose. Pursuant to this
facility letter, the Company undertakes to the bank that Mr. Lau
Chun Ming shall remain as chairman of the Board; and Mr. Lau
Chun Ming or Ms. Leung Lai So shall maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 55% legal and beneficial ownership of
the issued share capital of the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 27 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

Tenancy Agreements

Name of landlords Term of lease agreements

REEW M Y

BBALRS

AEBRAFEITLNBEARBIHER
IR MARI 27 - BIEBKEEFER
BRXHNR S MAKEERLEFR5E
ST EMAR R FEARE

FEBRERS

RNEE2024F3A31B FFEE - ANEEH
SEMEX ST ¢

HE 1=

Monthly rent Annual rent
SAHES BFHEE
(HKS) (HKS)

(%B7m) (&)

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group

HEERYELREREBENERERRESS
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023
=EBARAA 1/8/2023 ~ 31/7/2024

360,000 4,320,000

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HEAEYMERFENNRAEESNEARN

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023
Development Limited 1/8/2023 ~ 31/7/2024

EREBRERAR AR

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023

RATEERAF 1/8/2023 ~ 31/7/2024
Cheer Profit International 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023
Enterprise Limited 1/8/20283 ~ 31/7/2024

ENHEREEXAERAR

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023
RAZERAR AR 1/8/2023 ~ 31/7/2024

Healthy World Investment Limited ~ 1/8/2022 ~ 31/7/2023
EEREBRAE 1/8/2023 ~ 31/7/2024

Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2024

HZE2024F3A31A L FENXTZEEE

Annual cap FEE LR
For the year ended 31 March 2024 & ZE2024%E3A31AILEE

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 40 to 41 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2024, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$57 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.034 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

i

pwc e Rk i

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION B=NEEEEERLAFTARRE
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REFEFHEF ML 7895 R L A])
OPINION =R

What we have audited BMEREFHAD

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo SHRESEEERAG (ATHBIER

Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its A EENBARI (A THBEIESE])
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 59 to HIE N EEIE143E NG A M BHRER &

143, comprise: 75
o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024; o  JRA2024F3A3IHHGAEEAR
% .

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income s EEZHLFEMHZEEZAKEE
for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the s EEZHIFEMNGREEREHEK
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year e EHEZHIEFENGEBEEIRER
then ended; and 54

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, o BEBKEHmEMTE BIEEAZE
comprising material accounting policy information and HEEEREMBEREER -

other explanatory information.

44 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BARETEE(E)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are RHFESRTTPEBRANNOEREFTSEMRADT :
summarised as follows:

J Accounting for construction contracts . EREAAN ST RIE

o Impairment of machinery and equipment o MM EFREHRE

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BMNEBES NN EEBRENSE

Accounting for construction contracts BEEAHANETTER

Refer to note 2.3.9 in the summary of accounting Our procedures in relation to management’s
policies, note 4(a) in the critical accounting accounting for measuring the progress towards
estimates and judgements and note 5 and note 7  satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,

to the consolidated financial statements. cost and profit recognition of construction contracts
F2HGEEMBRAGFTBRBEMEE2.3.9 EZ  mainly included:
2 5Tl ET K T Y 5E4 (a) A TR Y s SR 37 o NEBEBHAERTRAEBNEE  BESIK

A KA RENERN G RIE - RS KERNEFE
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group ZEEF :
recognised revenue amounted to HK$457,875,000

from construction works, with the directly - We inspected material construction contracts
attributable construction contracts costs amounted of the Group and agreed contract sum and
to HK$375,035,000. variations, if any, to management’s records.

B E2024F3A31BLLFEFE ESEEB®RAR - BHPERR BEEENERBESNITRERRE
457,875,000 LRI A TI R BIZETIE - ME KR THREANEBNIEE (IF) -

B A H KA /375,035,000 7T ©

- We assessed and tested the key controls over
project management and the project costs
budgetary process and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

= FAME G RAIFIER B8 RIE B AR B
M TEER  WERERMITHREREERA
fhEFERBREE (MERE 8T Z2ILH
B E fm RS AR B BURR L) KR AL B K B AR
Bt 1) & B R B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised
over the period of individual contract by measuring
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
individual performance obligation. Generally, the
Group recognises revenue using either input
method or output method, with the selection
of method dependent upon which method best
depicts the way the Group satisfies its performance
obligation over time. The decision as to which
method to use is made for each contract after
considering the nature of the goods or services that
the Group promised to transfer to the customer.
BESHNNDBABBAEEN T2 RBITHEIBAERS
MEEEERSHNEANTARER - —Ris © BE
ERARA AR R AR - AR ZBEURR
Mg AR s it EEEERREITENERD
AR - HEEHOTHRANERZEZELERE BE5E
RAEBEREEPONERMIRBHIMEERRTE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

MRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRESNSE

- We selected, on a sample basis, cost
component within management’s budget,
such as costs of materials, subcontracting
fees, labour costs, overhead costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted cost components to
supporting documents including but not limited
to price quotation and rate of labour costs.

- HAfmEELERBEEMEAKRAE 2BER 4
BA  BEEASENTEKBOHTAE - H
RIEERANAKE D EBEZXHEMRLY - &
REEETRNBEERBBERAER -
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1B M AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Under output method,
revenue recognition is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity by reference to work
performed at balance sheet date as a percentage
of the total contract value.

BEBERNE BEAANBARL2ZEEZREH
R BEEEERELANKNNESSOMEEKALR
MBS LLMER - REBEB L)L WABRREERK
PEFEEMETIREASHNEETI O LBRES
HEEE) T TREER o

)

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts requires significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHHBRA - KA R s M ERTEELH (@ EER T
PRITBHNEBNER  O)fhFHSEENEEKR
BERAMEE ROt ERRETEsHREE

i 2= A B B AR e A B IV BB K I e (5t - R
WARHBEXRAYE BEEBGEMBHREANEZN
ARERFROAGREFTHNEEZE  HARLER
FRESFEMBINULEHE

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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MEETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMNEBESA NN EEERENSHE

We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost
and overhead costs allocation schedules.
BB R BAEE X (8RB TR 5 FE s 7 2
FEMETITRANMBEER IR HEHENE
BRAK AR ETT RO A -

We discussed with project managers and
compared the actual costs incurred against the
latest budgeted costs, to understand the status
of the project completion and, identify whether
there are any cost overruns, potential onerous
contact or variation of work scope. Where
applicable, we checked these changes from the
original work scope to supporting documents.
FAMIE BIE B &8 5w M 2 8RS B B R A AN B
B ATEEETLER - ATHBEETIRAR
BEREFEEAKABEX  BEBRESHNT
EHBHNED - EEANBER  RASRELHR
RTIESHB ER MBI -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

MRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRESNSE

- We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognised for
contracts where revenue was recognised using
output method.

- B2 A ERRRARN & LRE TS
FEBAERTAN T IARRLEEBRR, 58
BB ERWAMELLE -

- We assessed the competence and
independence of external quantity surveyors
involved in selected contracts.

- BATE2EMEL 2SR NETRAIE/M 2
EEPADE VA

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s accounting of construction
contracts were supportable by the evidence obtained.
ERABAREFNER BMARREERBHREESONE
AAREEERABEGT -

SNMEEEEERAA
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1B M AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Impairment of machinery and equipment

Refer to note 2.3.4 in the summary of accounting
policies, note 4(c) in the critical accounting
estimates and judgements and note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

F2HFA VBRI ST BRI BNE234 R
2 aT et R A BT T 4(c) A R M EE14 ©

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying value
of machinery and equipment amounted to
HK$512,339,000.
M2024F3A31H WM ERBEZHEREER
512,3389,000/8 7t °

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

MEETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMNEBESA NN EEERENSHE

B R R B RRE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment of machinery and equipment mainly
included:

HEEBHEMEREBRRE  BAEEROEFEE
B

= We understood and evaluated internal controls
over the impairment assessment of machinery
and equipment and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.
= BAAIE T AR (A AR N SR YR E T A B AL BD
2 B Iﬁﬂ%ﬁféﬁ%?ﬁm&f&ﬁﬁﬂl
BRRBEZ (EME  F8E EHREER
JE I/ RSl BREF 80 BRI ) K AT i B K 85 SR R
Y E A m g -

= We discussed with the management on the
recent market development that might impact
the prevailing market values for equivalent aged
assets for each category of machinery and
equipment.

- BMEREIRE i B Al e 8 = M & %
f%ﬁ”\]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁvéﬁﬁ’oiﬁhﬁ%{gﬁmﬁ%%mm
BER o



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Management considered the Group as one single
cash-generating unit as the major business of
the Group is engaged in foundation works and
ancillary services in Hong Kong which is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent. As
machinery and equipment contribute substantially
of the Group’s non-current assets, and there are
impairment indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable, machinery and equipment
are tested.

MY EEENIZXBREFTERFHEIRER
WMEBREXS BEERLS EEEAE—HIE
HEA BEAABBINRSRANRNAH7
BEEAR BAREBAREE SEXENERDE
ERHLELEXR BERETRBTRREE&EE
Wem - B itk 2R S A N AR T TR E RIS

2

T

Impairment of machinery and equipment requires
significant judgement and estimates. The
recoverable amount is higher of machinery and
equipment's fair value less cost of disposal and
value in use. Management determines the fair value
less costs of disposal by reference to available
data from market quotations of similar assets less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset.

Mt N 5% s 2 BB T 1B B K T K (il 51 - AT
CHEBMRREBEIATERLEEXKNEFERER
ZBEE EREFRS2EZHUAENTSRER
B E B EMNE XN AAEE R FEREEXAE -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A2 AR

MRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRESNSE

- We sample checked market quotations
and recent scrap metal price to assess
whether the market value of each type of
machinery and equipment is within reasonable
range and challenged the judgement and
estimates involved in the assessment with the
management by comparing the market value of
the selected machinery and equipment derived
from our independent research performed.

- A2 A T 95 $R (B ok R B 6 30 HA (B AR DA ET
HEEEHARENTESSBESIESHE @ WiEk
LB PIEITE LI E E A R R @R T(E -
AT G TS R I RSt B E R B AR

- We also compared, on a sample basis, the
key specifications, including the model, year
of manufacture, equipment and modifications
of the machinery and equipment from market
quotations to those owned by the Group to
assess the suitability of the comparison.

- BRI S RENERERENETERR (B
FBEE  BUEFH)  REBELHEBR) E EXE
FRYEA BOM S SR B E T AR LB - T E
HKREEEA -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o WRA (TS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

We focused on this area as a key audit matter due
to the significance of machinery and equipment to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the significance of the judgement and estimates
involved.

HRERRRES EXEGEUBREANEEN
VA K B8 B e HI i R b st eV EZ M - AP Ia% R I
BIERABREFEE -
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MEETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEERETSE

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s impairment assessment of
machinery and equipment were supportable by the
evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERBBERFNER BB RERBEHEMERER
BNEEEREEBEREFERIR -



Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

B AR

Hibfs 8
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

B AR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT REMMBN G ERRAENERE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

B AR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Au Chi Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2024

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue from contracts with customers
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)
Other (loss)/income, net

Administrative expenses
Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade and retention receivables, net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

ltems that may be subsequently reclassified

to profit or loss

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income i s
should be read in conjunction with the accompany notes. HE

meZHEBaER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024F3 8310 L F/E

Note
Bt
EEAHBA 5
iR 7
EF,(E8)
Hi(E18) A
FEE 6
THAX 7
FEUNE 5B RIRE &
BERERR - F8E  16(c)
# o E R
B A 8
MBER 8
B R—F8 8

AT S iRl R i
P13 mﬁﬁ/ﬁi) 9

FEBE

ENNCTE: S5 TN
FE1h 1R

FEER

H b2 WA
ABERB B EF DI E
fEm 2 IHH
BAFEFAEMEE
WAZERMEEZ
NEEEE

FEEHEBEAHE

AREIESEFTB ARG
EHEEIEARE

BRERNREEER 11

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
457,875 416,854
(426,064) (417,591)
31,811 (737)
(348) 15,897
(50,003) (46,535)
- 7,342
(18,540) (24,033)
4,568 2,568
(15,408) (9,530)
(10,840) (6,977)
(29,380) (31,010)
1,099 (445)
(28,281) (31,455)
(28,281) (31,455)
(28,281) (31,455)
(1,070) (690)
(29,351) (82,145)
(29,351) (32,145)
2024 2023
HK cents HK cents
B Bl
(1.68) (1.87)

Y ES 3R I LB Y 2 P R —F

SMEEEEERA T
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEERER

As at 31 March 2024 7202443 H31H

Assets

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Deposits

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Contract assets

Income tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

&E

FRBEE
EREEE

W MR A
EEFSREE
BAFEFARMER
WAZEREE
rE

RBEE
FEWE B IERRE £
Be  BNFUAREM
JE YR IR

BREE

AT Y@ PS5
ReMREeFED

BEEME
i
B
1

A

Note
B5E

13
14
20

15
16

16

16
17

18

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
22,887 22,235
513,843 527,186
4,724 5,452
20,580 21,650
1,143 -
563,177 576,523
120,866 152,293
10,592 11,692
80,596 33,817
2,632 31
85,727 197,074
,,,,,,, 300,413 394,907
863,590 971,430
4,200 4,200
466,403 495,754
470,603 499,954




Consolidated Balance Sheet

ReEEREER

As at 31 March 2024 7202443 H31H

Liabilities afE

Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Borrowings (EEN

Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFSHRARE

Lease liabilities HEaE

Amount due to a related company JE A~ — el BB A B
FRIA

Current liabilities =R

Trade and retention payables ERESHERRES

Accruals and other payables Iﬂ%ﬁ?r%}(léi&ﬁifrm%ﬁ
KIA

Borrowings (R

Lease liabilities HEaE

Income tax payable FESFTIS TR

Total liabilities BEA%E

Total equity and liabilities ERRAERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 143
were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2024 and
were signed on its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming
24R A
Director

EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT T
22 20,544 49,674
20 41,493 43,880
13 10,238 11,200
23, 27(d) 100,000 100,000
172,275 204,754
21 86,970 91,758
21 8,159 17,598
22 118,993 146,153
13 5,862 6,274
728 4,939
220,712 266,722

... 892,987 471,476
863,590 971,430

FH9F 1438 Z iR 6 MMk B 112024 F
6H2THEEESHE WA T ALK

BERBEREERBEN 2T —5f

xEE
Lau Pui Shan
25
Director
EE
LitiRE
BE o

ZHEEEEERAE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z%E2024F3A31HEF/E

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share Share income fair Other Retained
capital premium value reserve reserves earnings Total
BATET AL
2EUAZER
i RORE EEZOTERRE Rtif% REEH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR T Titn TR iR ThT
Balance at 31 March 2022 R202EIR3 A &k 4200 194,087 2,590 10,500 320,722 532,099
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (31,455) (31,455
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair JEAFEGALHZERAZ
value through other comprehensive S BAEV ATEFS
income - - (690) - - (690)
Total comprehensive loss EEXERELR
for the year = = (690) = (31,455) (32,149)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R2023E3A31 B 2 ks 4,200 194,087 1,900 10,500 289,267 499,954
Balance at 31 March 2023 R2023F3A31 B 2 ks 4,200 194,087 1,900 10,500 289,267 499,954
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (28,281) (28,281)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair JAFEAEMZERAZ
value through other comprehensive 4R EE ATEER
income - - (1,070) - - (1,070)
Total comprehensive loss FEXEERLE
for the year - - (1,070) - (28,281) (29,351)
Balance at 31 March 2024 R04EIA3I B 2 ik 4,200 194,087 830 10,500 260,986 470,603
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should AR A R s B B K E AR 2 MY 5 —4F
be read in conjunction with accompanying notes. B -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 & £2024F3 8310 L F/E

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Interest element of lease payments
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Principal elements of lease payments
Repayment to a director

Drawdown from a related company

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

REZEZDNRERE
RERB TR FE
ERHE

EWH 2
HEMEFEE D
ENEEMEH

REEHFRAREFR

REREFHNRERE

R NERE

B B N2 R A O
PSR

REZRS AR FHE

REAMETHNRERE
REURBRITER
E%E%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
TREUE BIERTTE
E%E%ﬁﬁ%%
HENK 2 A EH
BE—REEHIA
NG ES ok

METH (FFA) s
REFH

iﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%?‘%
WD) B

RENNRE K
ReEEY

RELNRERAE
ZEM

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

26(a)

26(c)

&

Note

B &E

B

o

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHIT
(15,110) (47,685)
(14,141) (9,190)
4,568 2,553
(1,267) (340)
(7,372) (3,433)
(33,322) (58,095)
(15,054) (31,645)
1 1
(15,053) (31,644)
30,743 100,000
(55,027) (13,383)
155,762 148,675
(187,768) (137,345)
(6,682) (9,062)
- (30,000)
- 100,000
,,,,,,, (62,972) 158,885
(111,347) 69,146
197,074 127,928
85,727 197,074

ZHEEEEERAE

2024 F F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in foundation works and ancillary services in Hong Kong and
Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note 15) which are stated at fair
value.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

1 —REN

“MEEEEAERAR (TARA]) BT
FeHSEME228(RRDE) (196156 )%
B3 - RiRa RERIR) EFR S S T
KR BEREBR QG - ARG M
It = B 37 R Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amended standards for its
annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2023:

HKFRS 17 (Amendments) Insurance Contracts

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting
Estimates

HKAS 12 (Amendments) International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities Arising From a
Single Transaction

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting

Practice Statement 2

(Amendments)

Polices

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

e PR RME

2 BEBRBE (&)

21 HmBEEEE)

RIBELBM B REENRBSEHRRAE
RE TR G BEEERERAAS
B & 5T BORE RAE A - P RERE H
BT EE R - A BARRMATHEEY
BHREABEAZENBENM E4RE -

il2)S
7]

22 EBIHEREREEZEZF

T

(@  AEBRAA)FETRAEEZTER

AEBB 2023F4 A1 BB FE RS
HA RS FE R LA T &85 5T 28 -

BEMBHREER REAH

FATHRZAER]

BAEGER St 2 ER

F85R 2 ER]

BEEER BRI E -5 —

F125R 2 EFT XAERA R A

BB G ER HE-QFELZE

F125 2 ER] E ;B EEENE
FER IR

FEGFERER BRESHE

BB G HRESRE

A BB R E 2R

Z1E7]

EAE RSB 1 B FERR A & R B ()
FE I TEHENIRKREMELE

B2 488
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SNMEEEEERAA
2024 F F 3R

65



66

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

[ R IR BIFTET RACNE TR K 7%

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 S BREME (&)
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 22 @HHRERBEEZEEH(E)
(Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet (b)
adopted =

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for 31 March 2024 reporting periods and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BERGEMEIR 2B

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BB G ERE IR 2B
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BEERBREENFE16F ]
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BB R EES5 (20209F)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BERAGFENETRREARRBREERETR
ZIERT

HKFRS 21 (Amendments)

EAMBREENSE21H 2B

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

ERUBEREEAE105% K
BB ST ENF28% 2 5T

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

KEEDERRDKIFERED

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

MHERAENERD A G

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERHEONEERR

Presentation of Financial Statement - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

HBHRENZT - ERAB RS REERERGTNENE

HE D
Supplier Finance Arrangements

HERRE b

Lack of Exchangeability
Bz A] R
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture
REEREBENRSEELECANEELE S TR

ETesr BRI RREBZIEFTEEM - M
RNEZE2024F3 8318 14 EAR sk 41
A BAREAEEHRFEM -

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT5I B H
H AR
SHHREAER

1 January 2024
2024F1H1H
1 January 2024
202461 A1R
1 January 2024
2024%1A1RH
1 January 2024

2024%1A1H

1 January 2024
2024F1H1H

1 January 2025
20251 H1H
To be determined



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amended standards and interpretation is
expected to be in the period of initial application. The Group
does not anticipate the adoption of them to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (note 2.3.1(ii)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

e PR RME

2 BRBRRBE (&)
22 BFBREERRECEE(E)

(b)  [HARERAREIFTET RS ETER R a2
(&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.1 Principles of consolidation (Continued)
(ii) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquired business, the equity interests
issued by the Group, the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and the
fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.1 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

(ifi) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.3.3 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the assets.

e PR RME

2 BEBRBE (&)

2.3 EBEAEIHBEBEE)
231 HAEABKRZIRA (&)
(i) B EHEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.3 Plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over the estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount of the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.3.4).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.3.5 Investments and other financial assets

(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). For investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing the assets changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset.

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses are charged within operating
profit in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

2 Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line items in the statement of comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.5 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(d) Impairment

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost
are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model.
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis where the
expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Note 3.1(c) set out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables, other receivables and
contract assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Impairment on other receivables and deposits and cash and
cash equivalent are assessed on a 12-month expected credit
losses. If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivables
has occurred since initial recognition, then the impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.6 Trade and retention receivables, and deposits and other
receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are generally due for
settlement within 90 days and therefore are all classified as
current. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
Retention receivables are included in current assets as the
Group expects to realise these within its normal operating
cycle.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits and other
receivables are recognised initially at the amount of the
unconditional consideration unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade and retention receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.3.7 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

2.3.8 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax
payable on the current year’'s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.8 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

2.3.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when goods are
transferred or services are rendered to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.9 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, service may provide over time or at a point in
time. Service is provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the asset.

If the Group expects the reference to progress certificates
issued by the customers, with additional adjustments where
necessary, depicts the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services promised to customers for
individual projects, the Group satisfies the performance
obligation over time and therefore, recognises revenue over
time in accordance with the output method for measuring
progress. Under output method, revenue recognition is based
on the stage of completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the gross billing value
of contracting work can be measured reliably. The stage of
completion of a contract is established by reference to the
construction works certified by independent surveyors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.9 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If construction projects have no alternative use to the Group
contractually and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment from the customers for performance completed to
date, the Group satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in accordance with
the input method for measuring progress. Under input method,
revenue on construction contracts is recognised based on the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably,
foundation work and ancillary service is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in supply and foundation work and ancillary service
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred to
a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain
a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract
assets and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the same
approach adopted for impairment assessment of financial
assets carried at amortised cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.9 Revenue recognition (Continued)

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to render the
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer. A contract liability
is recognised by the Group when the customer pays
consideration in advance before the Group renders the service
to the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included the
advance payments received from provision of foundation work
and ancillary services.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group reports the
net contract position for each contract as either an asset or
a liability. A contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings; a contract liability represents a liability
where the opposite is the case.

2.3.10 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3  Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.10 Earnings per share (Continued)
(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies
2.4.1 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
2.4.1 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive
income on a net basis within other gain/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing exchange rate at the date
of that balance sheet;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

2.4.1 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

- income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as in
other comprehensive income.

2.4.2 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination
of a contract.

2.4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturity of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
2.4.4 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.4.5 Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other payables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.4.6 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.4.7 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

2.4.7 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.4.8 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.4.9 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leaves are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
2.4.9 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension Obligations

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of the
employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per
month to the MPF Scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without possibility
of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve months after
balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

24,10 Leases
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a

corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

2.4.10 Leases (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component. However, for leases of real estate for which the
group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
2.4.10 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group, uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received, and makes
adjustments specific to the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
costs. The finance costs are charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:
° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
° any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

2 ERBRBE (&)

24 EMEFHEBREBE(E)

2410 E (&)

MEMNREAEER S ZFXEER - Mg
ERREEZME (U —RANEEAE
E2BR) - RfERAARANIZEERN
= (AME R AR AER UL ERIRETIZE
UG - B R IR EARSEREEE
ZEHUEEEEMFTESMANZAH

%) o

RETEREEERER - ANEEE S &R
HASOESNE =ZTRE RLEIHIED
AENARMRBESE=TTREUKEE K
s WETHERHEONFE -

MENFTRAE RMBERAZEEL D
i - ISR AER EHE N B NER - 5
U< & HEMA EREOIEN R

ERREERKAGE  BREATRE:

. MERBZIFFESE:

. REE B 2 B PTE 2 ERHE
5K REMBNIAEEES

. EAREERERRAE Rk

. EEMA -

EREEE—MRNEE A ERFHRE
EH(ABEERE) RIRERET R
E-WAKEOERTTERBEEEE
AEAEEERNBEEENAIERFHA
TIAFE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

2.4.10 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise small items of
office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated balance sheet based on their nature.

2.4.11 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)
2.4.12 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
8.l Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by
the directors of the Company. The Directors provide principles
for an overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in HK$. The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$ and
there are no significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. Management considered that the Group does
not have any significant foreign exchange risk in respect of
transactions or balances.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its cash
and bank balances and borrowings. Except for borrowings
with variable interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable interest rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Cash and
bank balances at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2024, if the interest rates on borrowings had
been 100 basis-points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would be HK$2,000,000
(2028: post-tax loss for the year would be HK$2,470,000)
higher/lower (2023: higher/lower) mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other receivables, contract
assets and cash in bank.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank, the Group only
transacts with reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions. There has no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is close to zero.

For deposits and other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the expected credit
loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group applies the simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

To measure the expected credit losses, trade and retention
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
the likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customer and its credit rating. The contract assets related to
unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade and retention receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade and retention receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and the
construction expenditure index of the city in which it operates
to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.

The Group overall considers the shared credit risk
characteristic and the likelihood of recovery, the nature and
the credit rating of the trade and retention receivables as the
measurement for the expected credit loss.

For trade and retention receivables and contract assets due
from customer with different credit risks, such as customers
that the Group has identified with financial difficulties, the
Group applies the individual identification method based on the
classification of credit risk of each individual balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group categorises trade or other receivables for write
off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments. Where
trade or other receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these
are recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources including
orderly realisation of short-term financial assets, receivables
and certain assets that the Group considers appropriate and
long-term financing including long-term borrowings are also
considered by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings which enable the
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
current rates at the year-end date). Where the loan agreement
contains a repayable on demand clause which gives the lender
the unconditional right to call the loan at any time, the amounts
repayable are classified in the earliest time bracket in which
the lender could demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled
repayment dates. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024

Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables
Amount due to related company
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2023

Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables
Amount due to related company
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

#H2024%3H31H
ERESHERRES
JE AT HRE & E e 1 3R
FERTBARE 1 B 0E

&5

BERE

20233 H31H
EREZHERRES
JE AT 508 K E e 19 5B
FERTBARE 2 B E

fE5R

BERE

e PR RME

3 MERBRER (&)
3.1 HBEREZR#E)
(@) REBELEE(E)
On
demand
and less Between Between
than 1and2 2and5 Carrying
1 year years years Total amount
PR-F -EZWE ZZILFE Bt RESHE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx T#Ern TFEx TFTErn TEx
86,970 - - 86,970 86,970
3,428 - - 3,428 3,428
- 108,281 - 108,281 100,000
122,476 12,628 9,193 144,297 139,537
6,925 6,224 4,814 17,963 16,100
219,799 127,133 14,007 360,939 346,035
On
demand
and less Between Between
than  1and2 2and5 Carrying
1 year years years Total  amount
RERR
PR—F —ZWME —ERF @it RESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
THr FTEr TEx TEr  TERL
91,7568 - - 91,758 91,758
2,147 - - 2,147 2,147
- 105,554 - 105,554 100,000
149,663 48,934 1,741 200,338 195,827
7,406 4,661 7,505 19,572 17,474
250,974 159,149 9,246 419,369 407,206
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2  Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity and
borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The gearing ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The gearing ratios were as follows:

Borrowings (note 22) &R (K1 at22)
Amount due to a related company (note 23) F&{~ — & @5 A &)

Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 18) i : B4 RN ZEEW (K1718)

Net debt BEFH
Total equity B
Gearing ratio BEARHX

The increase in gearing ratio from 20% as at 31 March 2023 to
33% as at 31 March 2024 was primarily due to the decrease
in cash and cash equivalents which led to increase in net debt,
and decrease in total equity.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

3 BERER (&)

32 EXREKER

AEEEREANEREREBAKERR
BREMREESN M ARRGERE®RNE A
HEa A ARENE - ARRFRE
R BN EB AR EE AR -

AEBENEAEBEEEDNER - BER
SABEARE  AREHEREN T
RHOBELRE MRRBEES  BITHR
SHEBENRDER - AEBAEERRE
HRERER - BERBHLRABEFER
iatgastE - BEFEUNRETRRE R
ReEEY - EEARLEWT

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAT

139,537 195,827

RIE (K7 :£23) 100,000 100,000
239,537 295,827

(85,727) (197,074)

153,810 98,753

470,450 499,954

33% 20%

& E B A& EAR2023F3 531 HHI20%
# 2 JA2024F3 A31 HHIZ3% @ EMEE
HRBReRBEEEMRLSEBREEFE
3N K M ES B D o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
SE3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income) and financial liabilities, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade and retention payables, other payables and
borrowings approximate their fair values, which either due to
their short-term maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director was a
reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured in the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value by level of the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

2024

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note 15) ~ & Bi&E (f1:715)

2023

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Note 15) ~ & &i&E (f17715)

BATEFARMEZEEA

BATEFARMBEZEEA
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
). Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no transfers of
financial assets of the Group between different levels of the fair
value hierarchy (2023: same).

For the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no significant
changes in the business or economic circumstances that affect
the fair value of the Group’s financial assets (2023: same).

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time
provided by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors
involved and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, management
conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact on the
profit recognised in each period.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Construction contracts (Continued)

The Group recognises its contract revenue based on the
satisfaction of the performance obligation either input method
or output method, by reference to the contract costs incurred
up to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract, or according to the
percentage of work performed to date of individual contract
of construction works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken in construction
contracts, the date at which the contract activity is entered
into and the date when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

(b) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant and
equipment by reference to the Group’s business model, its
assets management policy, the industry practice, expected
usage of the assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in the market. Residual values of the machinery
and equipment are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into account the
condition of the relevant assets or the value of scrap metal and
other economic considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and residual values
of the plant and equipment as estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment had further
decreased by 10%, the depreciation expenses would increase
by HK$8,994,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$7,580,000).

e PR RME

4 BEEGTHETTRAM (F)

@ BEANG@E)

AEBERBHENEENREITABEAEL
B ZERESORA > EF2EZHEER
EMREENS ORGSR NBMBETK
ANBD LR BUEETIREGNESD
ETHTIREEANEBEEZBENL - AR
REZESOETEBINEE  AHES
FRI M B HEE B R ek B IR R BN T
RS HE - AREERN A AETHRR
A RERIRERESHRHENEHRA
BHRA ZHERAMEHREMDS B
BEEHRTAOERERADBANER
AN

(b) W R EEEET A A FH R
FREE

EREDZ2EARENERRS  HEE
EEMRR  TXRES  BEBRHRZ B
Mg RrE AN EEHN
RSk E T FARE - AR LR A
A E R - A KR R RISREE TR
BARFHRKEENRTMERERE @ A&t
Ko 7B R B B BT KR ) (B (B S EL A AR
BEERAE - EEEME M LRED
AERAFHRNKEESHTEERAE

27 428
N4 X

ERBERENRGEEE — TR D
10% » IR E £2024F3A31H IEFEH
I1E & A 4535 108,994,000/% 7T (20234 :
7,580,000/ 75) °
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and
equipment (Continued)

If the useful life of plant and equipment had further decreased
by one year, the depreciation expenses would increase by
HK$6,833,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023:
HK$5,298,000).

(c) Estimated impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for non-current assets at the end of each reporting
period. Management considered the Group as one single
cash-generating unit as the major business of the Group is
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in Hong
Kong which is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent. Plant and
equipment are tested for impairment as plant and equipment
contribute substantially of the Group’s non-current assets.
Plant and equipment are tested for impairment when there
are impairment indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from market
quotations of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. Management
determines the market values of plant and equipment by
reference to comparable market transactions.

Such valuations with reference to comparable market
transactions are made based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainties and might differ from the actual
result. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions by adjusting the
differences to reflect current prices in active market for plant
and machinery of different model, condition and age. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and
sales transactions in the market.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of non-current assets (Continued)

In the impairment review for plant and equipment, management
has performed sensitivity analysis by discounting the market
value. Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
changes in any of the above key assumptions would not cause
the carrying amounts of plant and equipment to exceed the
recoverable amounts.

(d) Fair value of the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Management considers the fair value of the unlisted securities
mainly represented the fair values of the investee’s investment
properties, net of its net current liabilities. These investment
properties are determined by using valuation technique. Details
of the judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in note
15.

(e) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

() Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Macau. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

e PR RME

4 BEEGTHETTRAM (F)
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contract with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts on
foundation works and ancillary services in the ordinary course
of business. Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and
ancillary services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
regard the Group’s business as one single operating segment
and reviews financial information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services are
recognised over time during the year 31 March 2024 (2023:
same).

(a) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from customers in Hong
Kong. The principal assets of the Group were also located in
Hong Kong as at 31 March 2024. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.

(b) Revenue derived from major customers
External customers which individually contributed over 10% of

the total revenue of the Group for any of the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023 are as below:

EFH
P

Customer A
Customer B

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

B T2 & M B AR 7%

5 EFEHNBARD BEHR

BEPANWABERREBBREPHET

REHBRENAE OB TRAKHE
MR - BERARALT -
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT THET
457,875 416,854

ARBNATESHEESETEZER
RA - BTESHAKENTHE D/ —
EE—KL0H  AHEREHIBEES

REE2024F3A31B IEFE - W ETTE
X B 2B AR 75 H9 Ui A T B B RS RE AR (2023
& 8R) -

N

(a) 7

okr

P&

AEBHRAETEZREEEEF -HZE
2024F3A31H  AEEMEBZEE MU

REE - Btk - YRR IR E ) BT
B AT

(b) KEEERFHWRA

REE 20245 20233 318 1L E{a]—
AFEEBANEBAAEBFEEMNEUY
ABERBBI10%ZAZEFMT ¢

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TRERT TET
371,449 255,747
N/ATiE A 57,865
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6 OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME, NET 6 Hitt (B8]) WA FE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & #4% & 3% 48 &9 ik 2% 1 1
Write-off of plant and equipment T S A A B BB (435) (161)
Government grants (Note (a)) AT HE BY (H1it(a)) - 5,447
Compensation from litigation FHaAfE(E 362 10,527
Others Hh (276) 83
(348) 15,897

Note: /jﬁﬁ.}r -

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group received (a) B E2023F3H31HIEEE K&
government grants including from Employment Support W B B B AT 4 B B FE B R R
Scheme (“ESS”) under Anti-Epidemic Fund, which is related SHENRFEITEIFFZE NN ED
to Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) amounting to 5,368,000/ 7T + H H20197E X 7% &
HK$5,368,000. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other fm ([2019 B R m = im ) tHE - %4
contingents attached to the grants. No government grants are Bf) 30 4 B 75 1 (] AR 2 AR 6 1 s H b
noted during the year ended 31 March 2024, G IR - B E2024%F3A31H LA

B SMEESENRF#ESE -

SMEEEEERA T
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales (note (b))
Construction contracts costs(note (a))
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets
Others

Administrative expenses

Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (c))

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets

Operating lease rental in respect of
— office and storage premises
— directors’ quarters

Professional fees

Motor vehicle expenses

Bank charges

Exchange losses/(gains)

Others

Total cost of sales and administrative
expenses

104 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

HERA (BTEE (b))
BREA KA (K it(a)
e

—BE#WRERRE
—EREEE
Hth

TR

BIXRA(BREFEMHE)

(Mf 5% (c)
1% B AN B
e

—BEEM LR
—FREEE

UTRENKEHERS

—-MAERBREME
—BEEES
BEXEH
MERX
RITF
FE B 1R, (Heas)
H Al

HERARITHFAX A

EHEEETHBEX
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&T FHET
386,546 380,098
27,086 25,341
1,035 538
11,397 11,614
426,064 417,591
17,491 17,036
1,476 1,613
876 831
3,621 7,846
9,307 4,845
2,167 1,445
5,187 4,664
3,236 3,276
532 681
113 (132)
5,997 4,430
,,,,,,,, 50,003 46,585
476,067 464,126




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Construction contract costs included but are not limited
to costs of construction materials, staff costs (refer to
note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts and consumables,
subcontracting charges and transportation.

(b) Cost of sales included directly attributable contract costs
amounting to HK$375,035,000 (2023: HK$360,273,000).

(©)

Wages and salaries TERES

Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKE AN — ERMH KRG

Employment benefits EE 1= A

Less: amount included in cost of sales W ETAEER AR 2 258

(d) Pension costs — defined contribution plans

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme vest fully and
immediately with the employees. Accordingly, there are no forfeited
contributions under the MPF Scheme which may be used by the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions or contributions payable in
future years as at and during each of the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023.

e PR RME

7 BRUEEE SR (#F)

@ BREAWREBEETRAZEN
BAK - BTRA(BRTXME
(0)  EREEA - THEREES 5
EBERREHER -

(o) HERABRIETEEERGZALHK
375,035,000/ jt (20234 :
360,273,0005# 7T) °

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
164,024 126,460
4,414 3,454
1,395 841
169,833 130,755
(152,342) (1138,719)
17,491 17,036

(d  RARERA-ERERGE

REEMBESFTEELNEHRE SRS
EEFTA - Bt - REIE20244F K%202343
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BUEE S WX (&)
Notes: (Continued) Mt - (&)
() Five highest paid individuals (e) hAEEZEHFAT

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the five individuals whose B E2024F3A3IALLFE  AEBRAK

emoluments were the highest in the Group include three directors BEHEALHABIE=ZR(2023F : =ZR)E
(2023: three) whose emoluments were reflected in the analysis - HENMERM 0@/ DITHZRT
presented in note 30(a). The emoluments paid to the remaining two MEBME (2023F : WE) AL
individuals (2023: two) are as follows: SWT
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind — #F& « H)ZBL N EYEF 2,936 2,925
Bonus 14T 245 245
3,181 8,170
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands: ZEANTHOMENFUTEHE

Number of individuals

AH
2024 2023
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 2

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors AREEREMNTRNESSKAERRITAL
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join S AHEMBN S fE A DA NS E s in AR E
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for the loss of B ISRk BB e o

office.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RME

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET 8 BKER-F5
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Finance income E TN
— Interest income on bank deposits —RITFREF B U A 4,568 2,653
Finance costs MBER
— Interest expense on bank loans —SRITEFHFERAL (7,569) (5,885)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities —-HESENFERX (1,267) (340)
— Interest expense on amount due to —FES — A R 5RIER
a related company (note 27(b)) MERZ (K it27b) (6,572) (3,305)
(15,408) (9,530)
Finance costs, net WBBH 58 (10,840) (6,977)
9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9 Figs (Ke) Bx
The amount of income tax (credited)/charged to the RNEsamkzEk GEA) X HEMETR
consolidated statement of comprehensive income represents: AR
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHT
Hong Kong profits tax BEBMER
Current income tax BNERFT 1S HX 560 3,151
Deferred income tax (note 20) RIEFTB L (A77720) (1,659) (6,750)
Over-provision of current income RFRNEARTE T A B R R
tax in prior year - (27)
Macau complementary tax SBPIFTS /iR
Current income tax BNEAFT 1S FX - 4,071
(1,099) 445

Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) on EB N BB IEERNG S EREMNB
the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (20234 : 16.5%) 7t & °

SNMEEEEERAA
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e PR R M

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 9

Macau taxation is calculated at tax rates applicable to

jurisdictions in Macau at 12% (2023: 12%).

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

Loss before income tax

Calculated at tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effects of:
Tax rates of overseas operation
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Tax losses for which no deferred income
tax asset was recognised
Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses
Over-provision of income tax in prior year
Effect of two-tiered profit tax rates regime
(note)
Tax reduction

Income tax (credit)/expense
Note:

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative

Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to

be taxed at 16.5%.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

FrEH (ER) X (&)

SRR IERBARAEEREAMNR R
12% (20234 : 12%) 5 & o

AEERABHABENHBERBEE
BMERFENOERHBNEENT ¢

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
R AT IS 50 AT S 18 (29,380) (31,010)
1#£16.5% M i K 51 & /9 18 (4,848) (5,117)
AT EBENRGEZE
7 HNZE T 1Y T I 2 (1,649)
Pk RN (752) (1,307)
TR B HE 130 3,303
WEBERBELEFRBSIHEE
BRI E 18 6,500 7,465
B A AEY EER
HIaEE (1,963) (2,048)
EEFBERBEEE - (27)
FEBRRH 2z 2
(K1:%) (165) (165)
I8 R (3) (10)
FTE® (%) FX (1,099) 445

HeE -
Council passed The M2018F3H218  HA ML EERiBC2017
FHIE UEET) (B75) BOIER) ([{EHE
] H|AFBEHMRES - ZIEFERR
20183 H28HEEEN BEM - WHREH
EERTE - REFGSHMAL - &ERD
% 19 B2,000,0005% Tt )i F #§ $28.25% 9 Fi
KT - A8 12,000,000/ 7T 2 4 H #4537
16.5% T KA o TRHEFSHRAGE
BRI ERF B EEIR16.5%M T E-F -
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10 DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

11 LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
respective years.

Loss attributable to equity holders ARAIEZFAA
of the Company (HK$’000) FEAEEE (FH5T)

Weighted average number of AEERERATN
ordinary shares for the purpose 3 AR D 1 K
of calculating basic earnings (F8)

per share (thousands)

Basic loss per share (HK cents) FRREARERE GBI)
(b) Diluted
Diluted loss per share is of the same amount as the basic loss

per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

e PR RME

10 KRE

BV T EENEE20244F 202343 A
STHIEFEIRM KBRS -

11 BRERE
(a) BN
FREREBIRBEARTERE A AR

BB ARBEEE BT EBENET
BEEE -

2024 2023

(28,281) (31,455)

1,680,000 1,680,000

(1.68) (1.87)

L) #8

R ESEEGRANSEER - Ty
AR IEE £ 20244 K2023F3 A31H |EF
JE A 4 2R 175 B9V 72 58 X m AR o
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12 SUBSIDIARIES

Name

28

Directly held by the Company:
RERRERREE !

Sam Woo Group Limited

(“SW (BVIY)
(T=mEv))

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

HARAEEER:

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation
Limited (“SWBP”)

SHEERAR (=M

Sam Woo Construction &
Engineering Limited

“MERERBRAF

Sam Woo Engineering Equipment

Limited (‘SWEE?)
“MERERDR ([ZFEH])

Place of

Incorporation and kind of
legal entity
EMAIHER
EEERER

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

RERARS  ERAT

British Virgin Islands, limited
liability company

ABRARS  ERAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&% BRAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&% BRAA

Hong Kong, limited liability

company

&R BRAF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

12 KEAF

Effective interest
held as at

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRATRAHE fERBRER

2024 2023

10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
US$1 each

10,000 BREE1% T
1EEH

2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
US$1 each

JREREEIET

ERR

50,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%

shares of HK$1 each

50,000,000 R A&
1B TR BR
100%

100,000 ordinary shares 100%

of HK$1 each

100,000 B REEIAT
i

500,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
of HK$1 each

500,000 B REE1BT
i

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREELE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERR

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETIER
RN B R

Trading of and leasing of
machinery and equipment in
Hong Kong

REBEEREEHRN

B

Leasing of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong

ISVECL WG
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

1]

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):

HAAABERSE (8

Sam Woo Foundation Limited
(“SWFL")

Sam Woolt B R A ]
(Tswi )

AA Foundation Limited

DMt EERAF

Sam Woo Givil Contractors Limited

“MIRIRBRAH

Sam Woo Givil Works Limited

“MEABRAH

Sam Woo Foundation Limited

SMHETIRBRAT

Place of

Incorporation and kind of
legal entity
EMRIBER
EEERER

Macau, limited liability
company
2R AR

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&t ARAH

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&5 ARAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&5 ARAH

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&R ARAA

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRATRAHE

2 ordinary shares of
MOP15,000 each
2R BIREE15,000
RN LBR

40,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

40,000,000 ERR A E
1ETTEE B

10,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

10,000 SR A EIS T
HIESE]

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REREEIETH
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

AREREEIETH
ERR

12 MBARE(E)

Effective interest

held as at

FeER R
2024

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2023

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities and

place of operation

TERBREELY

Foundation works and

ancillary services in Macau

RRFETHETR
REE 4RI R R 7

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHATRE
RSB R

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHATRE
R 0B FR

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHATRE
R 0B R

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETER
AN B AR

SHMEEEEER
2024 F

A
3

11
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e PR R M

12  SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

2R

Indirectly held by the Company

(Continued):

HARAREER : (R)

Sam Woo Finance Limited

“NHBERAE

Sam Woo Asia Development Group

Limited

“MENEREEARAA

Sam Woo Foundation Group Limited

SN EEREERAT

Redland Contractors Limited

Place of

Incorporation and kind of Particulars of issued

legal entity
SR LR
EEERER

Hong Kong, limited liability
company
&E ARRA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&R ARAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&R ARAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

&R AR

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

share capital

BRTRAHE

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
CREREEIETH

1 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

1REREEIETH
£

1 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

1REREEIETH
i

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

IRSREEATN
£

12 MEAT(E)

Effective interest

held as at

Gt Lt 5o
2024

100%

100%

100%

100%

2023

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

TERBREELY

Inactive

LEXH

Inactive

LEXH

Inactive

LEXH

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHATRE
SR I R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

Right-of-use assets

Of which are: =}
Properties ES
Machinery and equipment R N 3 A

Lease liabilities

Of which are: B

Current lease liabilities mEBHERE
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEAR
Note:

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March
2024 were HK$5,308,000 (2023: HK$17,420,000).

e PR RME

13 HE

AU R WA EEIEAREADTE S
BYE -

EHERE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
4,571 2,884
18,316 19,351
22,887 22,235
HERE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
5,862 6,274
10,238 11,200
16,100 17,474
HraE

B E2024F3A3B It FEAEFREEE
/45,308,000 7T (20234 : 17,420,000/8
JC) °

EEEREERAF
2024 F F 3
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e PR R M

13 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income

Depreciation of right-of-use assets of HK$1,035,000 (2023:
HK$538,000) have been included in cost of sales and
HK$3,621,000 (2023: HK$7,846,000) have been charged in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Expenses relating to short-term lease for office and storage
premises of HK$9,307,000 (2023: HK$4,845,000) and
directors’ quarters of HK$2,167,000 (2023: HK$1,445,000)
have been included in administrative expenses.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March
2024 was HK$19,423,000 (2023: HK$15,692,000).

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases offices, factory premises and staff quarters.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 year
to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions including lease
payments and lease terms.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, no lease is committed but not
yet commenced.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

13 HE (&)

(b) REEWBEERERNEE

ME E2024F3A3IBIEFEEMS -
1,035,000/ 7T (20234 : 538,000/ 7T)
WERBEENEETAHEHERA M
3,621,0007 7T (20234 : 7,846,000/ 7T )
EETHAZ R -

EERAERERYEZEHHENFAS
9,307,000/ 7T (20234 : 4,845,000/ 7T )
K E EEE 2,167,000/ 7T (20234 :
1,445,000 L) B FT AT X -

H E2024F3831BItFE HEWMIR
&R H 4% 519,423,000 7T (20234
15,692,000/ 7T ) °

() AEENHEETREARASR

AEBEERAE BEAEIES B
EAHMBRERIESFNEEHRATL -

HEGRRENEERZ  LESEED
RIEY R S ki - BREENREEER
BR -

20244 20233 A31H @ WEE A
BEHARBNEE -
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e PR RME

14  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 31 March 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2023
Opening net book amount
Write-off
Additions
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2024
Opening net book amount
Write-off
Additions
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2024
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

#2022F3A31H
A
ZiHE
EmEE
BE2023F3A31HILEE
FOEmFE
MisH

NE
e

FHREMFE
202353 [31H

Z%N

25t E

REEE

HZE2024F3A31HILEE
FNERFE
HisH
RE
nE

FREREHE

12024434318
Rithhe

FREFE

14 HHRRHE
Machinery

and Furniture Motor
equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
BHKRE BGRREE RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT THT TET THT
850,422 2,294 10,419 863,135
(328,139) (1,446) (8,615) (338,200
522,283 848 1,804 524,935
522,283 848 1,804 524,935
(161) = — (161)
28,055 200 329 28,584
(25,245) (251) (676) (26,172)
524,932 797 1,457 527,186
877,991 2,495 10,728 891,214
(353,059) (1,698) (9,271) (364,028)
524,932 797 1,457 527,186
524,932 797 1,457 527,186
(435) - - (435)
14,928 66 60 15,054
(27,086) (267) (609) (27,962)
512,339 596 908 513,843
891,920 2,230 10,543 904,693
(379,581) (1,634) (9,635) (390,850)
512,339 596 908 513,843

(@) As at 31 March 2024, plant and equipment amounting (a)
to HK$108,838,000 (2023: HK$62,260,000) were

secured for the Group’s bank loans (note 22(e)(ii)).

M2024F3A31H @ & 58 A
108,838,000/ Jt (20234 :
62,260,000/ 7T ) H) #4% J 5% 15
EREBRTERNKE (&
22(e)(ii)) e

=NEZEEEARAE
2024 F F 3R
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15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Opening amount FUcHE
Fair value loss NEEEE
Closing amount FREH

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income is unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group holds 5% of issued capital of
Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which is an unlisted entity
principally engaged in investment properties holding (2023:
same).

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted securities
mainly represented the fair values of the investee’s investment
properties, net of its net current liabilities. These investment
properties which are situated in Hong Kong are valued by
an independent valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
(2028: LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited), with reference
to prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices of
comparable properties of similar size, development scale,
nature, character and locations. The valuations have been
made on the assumption that the owner sells the investment
properties on the market in their existing state without the
benefit of a cash rebate, deferred terms contract, leaseback,
joint venture, management agreement or any other similar
arrangement which could serve to increase the value of the
properties. Management considered that the net current
liabilities approximated their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other comprehensive
income is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see note
&8,

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

15 RBRAFEFAHEMZERAZE
BMEE

BAFEFARMEARAZEARNRE

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH&T
21,650 22,340
(1,070) (690)
20,580 21,650

BAVEAARMEABAZEREER
REBZIFLETRARES

MR2024F 38318  AEBIFELELE
BRARBEITERASY) T EETER
EREYELER ZIE LT EEE (20234 ¢
R o

BERERA  FLMBHZATEEER
WIRBEREREWE 2 ATFEGIRER
BEFRE)  REREVEMRESE T
LERBUKRND - BRAE - EE - FE
MBI LEERENERHEHEFERD
Bi& N, SR BB % BB L ER A 51T 8
SRARA A (20234 : FEETHSRIA
BRAGE)#EITHE - HETIIBREES A
YMEBRREMS FHEREMEMERS
EHE - REIEREL EEEE £E 0
¥ TEBENEAEMARAYEER
ZHEUZHENITR - ERERARDAR
FREEEHRAmEREATE-

AAREERAZEREEZ A TFER
RATFEERzF=HR(AHME3.3) -
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16 REHREZSHERREE URE
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER €~ A FE R H b E W FE

RECEIVABLES

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT &L
Trade receivables (Note (a)) U E 5 I8 (K it a) 83,531 114,248
Retention receivables (Note (b)) FEWIRE & (K75t (b)) 55,002 55,712
Trade and retention receivables EWE SRIBRIRES 138,533 169,960
Less: loss allowance (Note (c)) B R EE (K i) (17,667) (17,667)
120,866 152,293
Deposits, prepayments and other B4 TETIE N H i E U

receivables (Note (d)) I (H#E(d) 11,735 11,692
Less: non-current portion B FERNEREE o (1,143) -
Current portion BNERER 75 10,592 11,692

Notes: HaE -

(@) The credit period granted to trade customers other than for (a) GREWRBEIN  BHEF —RER

retention receivables was generally ranged from 45 to 90 days. A5EQOHMEEH - RERE S W
The terms and conditions in relation to the release of retention BRRIGEHEREREES A MARTR -
vary from contract to contract, which may be subject to AIREAFERER T B E L LA
practical completion, the expiry of the defect liability period or a EHTENEHEEmE S 2REG - AE
pre-agreed time period. The Group does not hold any collateral B S A RESEE -
as security.
The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice date was BUWE SHIBREZEEZERHAERE ST
as follows: T
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHT
1 to 30 days 1Z30H 46,909 92,355
91 to 180 days 912180H 5,650 =
181 to 365 days 1812365H - 1,327
More than 365 days HiB365H 30,972 20,566
Total 5t 83,531 114,248
SMEEEEAR

A E]
2024 5 £ 3] 117
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16

AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued) (%)
Notes: (Continued) Htat o (&)
(b) Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the terms (b)

of the respective contracts. In the consolidated balance sheet,
retention receivables were classified as current assets based
on the operating cycle. The aging of the retention receivables
based on invoice date was as follows:

BREZRERRES  URRE
T-ENREREMERRE

EURE £ O RIRE B A NIRKE
BoREEEERBRA BRRE
ENBRRRDEE - ENEEBHE
WREBSRIFEZARANREDT

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FHT
Within 1 year —&FR 2,962 14,333
Between 1 and 5 years —ZS5h4E 41,399 34,856
More than 5 years HBRAF 10,641 6,523
55,002 55,712
(©) Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and (©) EBUWE SHIELREEREREZS
retention receivables are as follows: N
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
At 1 April R4A1H 17,667 25,009
Reversal of provision for impairment of trade FENE 5 R IE R AR B & R BB E
and retention receivables, net (note) —REE (HaE) - (7,342)
At 31 March M3HA31H 17,667 17,667

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) (Continued)

Note:

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring

expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest risk can be
found in note 3.1.

(d) The balance mainly represents rental deposit, prepayment for
sub-contractor fee, and other miscellaneous prepayments.

(e) The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in HK$.

17 CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets (note) BHEE (K1:F)

Note: Contract assets related to construction services consist
of unbilled amount resulting from construction when the
cost-to-cost method of revenues recognised exceeds the
amount billed the customer. The contract assets are transferred
to trade receivables when the rights become unconditional.

e PR RME

16 EBRESFRERRES URR
T BAMNRERAEMBERRE
(&)

Kz - (&)

() (#&)
Bat -
JBE 1B % 2

AEBRAEBMBERELERFOHRBX
FAERBEREER  MARKESFER
RESURENEEEREEFENERE
B -

BERELEZFERERAEEEERR -
SN LR B M R R R M B R BT FESA -
d ZEBRIERMESES  2BEEN

FRIA A B A METR TR A 5ROR o

e EEEZFERRESHEREESRR
RNFERE - WAEBTEE

17 BHEE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
80,596 33,817

Wit BEERFEAHEIENEERERRZ
ERBELENEERRALLBLEMRA
BBEMRFPHMIRENSERNAR
RURESE - ANEECRENSE
REGHRERERKE Z5E -

SMEEEEERA T
2024 F F 3R

119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 HERBEELEEY
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Cash at bank RITIR S 85,625 196,972
Cash on hand FHERBS 102 102
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRREEEY 85,727 197,074
Maximum exposure to credit risk FriEENx=EERE 85,625 196,972

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were BWE LRSS EBYHNETREN TN &8t

denominated in the following currencies: 17 :
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
HK$ & TT 85,274 189,337
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPIEE (RFIE]) 425 7,709
Others H A 28 28
85,727 197,074
19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 19 B RO EERHE
RESERVES
(a)  Share capital (@  B’AE
Number of
shares HK$
' &vig S Q=] BT
Ordinary Shares, authorised: ZERCGEE) -
At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 7202343 H31H &202443831H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZTER(BRITEHBE) :
fully paid:
At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024 7202343 H31H &202443831H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000

1 20 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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e PR RME

19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Share premium and reserves

At 1 April 2022
Loss for the year

Fair value loss on financial assets

at FVOCl

At 31 March 2023
Loss for the year

Fair value loss on financial assets

at FVOCl

At 31 March 2024

Note:

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference between
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof and the difference between the
aggregation of the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share capital of SW (BVI)

R202F4A1R

FEER

EATEFALBRARAL
SHAEIATERE

R2023F3A31H

FEER

EATEFALBZERAL
SREEIATEER

20243831

19 RBEX - BROSEREHE(E)
b) BRHOEERFEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share income fair value Other Retained
premium reserve reserves earnings Total
BATEA
Ef2E4A
LEREE
g ATERE AR REEA a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR ThEn TR Thr
(note)
(Hit)
194,087 2,690 10,500 320,722 527,899
- - - (31,455) (31,455)
- (690) = = (690)
194,087 1,900 10,500 289,267 495,754
- - - (28,281) (28,281)
- (1,070) - - (1,070)
194,087 830 10,500 260,986 466,403
Hiet

issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the reorganisation completed in

2008.

ZHEEEEBR

7 £ B Y H b (3 18 5 AR 15 25 48 AT U A9 B /8B
NEMRASRAREE BRAMBEITAA
A AR 2N T (B #) = 58 K AR 8 7A20034F 72 Ak HY
S48 AT UK B A9 = ANt B B = FAg A A0 IR AN E
EEM  SRABRIEEKRAmETR=F
BV A E B H) =58 °

AT
2024 F F 3R
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax and liabilities are offset when there is a

20 EEFREHR

BEIEFSHR M BERE A FORRHNITE

legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against A ENEATRIE & E B EATR TE B B8 -
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate BIRFEFTISFL B[R — B U B A B B T 1A
to the same fiscal authority. $HEH o
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FH&T
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFMERBE (41,493) (43,880)
Deferred income tax assets BEFEMEE 4,724 5,452
(36,769) (38,428)

The movement on the deferred income tax account was as
follows:

BIEFEHERBEHOT :

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Balance at 1 April RA4A18 2 &gk (38,428) (45,178)
Recognised in the consolidated statement R4R4E & U K NHER

of comprehensive income (note 9) (H1:£9) 1,659 6,750

Balance at 31 March MRBHA31H 2 & & (36,769) (38,428)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, were as follows:

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EERBABMEENES (L TEEH
RITH% RDAE SRR A < AR A ) 20T
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 20 EEFRBH(E)
Deferred income tax liabilities BRI B E
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
RIS E
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 April 2022 M2022F 4 18 2 &k 85,365
Recognised in the consolidated statement of REEEEBER NER
comprehensive income 1,028
Balance at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 20233 A31H &
2028F 4 A1 H 2 &k 86,393
Recognised in the consolidated statement of RIFEE2EBERANER
comprehensive income (1,468)
Balance at 31 March 2024 R2024F3 A31 8 2 &84 84,925
SNMEFEEEFR

]
2024 F F 3R 123
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

Balance at 1 April 2022
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive

income

Balance at 31 March 2023
and 1 April 2023
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income

Balance at 31 March 2024

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

R20225%4 A1 8 2 &

WA 2 E SR A ER

H2023F3A318 &
2023F4 A1 8 Z &%

WA 2 ERERANER

R2024F3 H31H 2 & &

20 EZEFEH(E)

RIEFTIE R EE

Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
REFRER HEEE wEr
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FEx
- 40,187 40,187
4,081 3,697 7,778
4,081 43,884 47,965
47 144 191
4,128 44,028 48,156
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a subsidiary of
the Group has received a letter from the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong (“IRD”), where the IRD disagreed on
certain depreciation allowances claimed in relation to the years
of assessment from 2012/2013 to 2015/2016. The subsidiary
is at a taxable loss position and is entitled to lodge a formal
disagreement towards the IRD’s Statement of Loss or within
one month after the IRD issues a tax assessment incorporating
the loss to be issued in subsequent years as and when the
subsidiary turns to a taxable income position. According to the
IRD’s calculation, the tax losses brought forward will decrease
by HK$32,738,000. The corresponding impact on the deferred
tax liabilities arising from accelerated tax depreciation as at
31 March 2024 would decrease by HK$5,402,000, whilst
deferred tax assets arising from tax losses as at 31 March
2024 would also decrease by the same amount. These impacts
have not been adjusted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as at 31 March 2024 because the directors do
not agree with the IRD’s assessment that such depreciation
allowances should be disallowed (2023: same). The Group is in
the process of seeking advices from their tax consultants as to
how to take further action in respect of this letter and continues
to provide for deferred taxation based on management’s best
estimates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 March 2024, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$177,812,000 (2023: HK$150,336,000)
that can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income, of which an amount of HK$51,000 will be expire in
2027 (2023: HK$Nil will be expire in 2027) and an amount of
HK$177,761,000 (2023: HK$150,336,000) has no expiry date.

e P BHmRNE

20 EEFEH(E)
BT EREE (&)

REE2021F3A31B ILFE » NEE—
MMBAREEEEHBER ((BHEH])
KK - ERBRITIRAEZMKEB R A
2012/2013%F [ £2015/2016%F £ M) 5T #i
FERBETHELTE - ZMBE R A
FERERERTEIERE MEEBAE
AU AFRRERS - QI ERERE RN HE
FRELTH (WABEERE) % —EA
AT EBEBASREEARE - BRI
MBEBHEE  SEORIEEEBRD
32,738,000/ 7T ° 7202443 A318 -
MBEHREEMEELECHEAENHE
JE 2 253 55 5,402,000/ 7T 0 M 122024
F3HA31H AR IBE B M E LR ELETIE
BENTSNBEERERE BRESLETE
ERERIELNE  RATEEREHS
MEENE WU EXENRERSEE
FE2024F3A31AMIRE B RE P AR
(20234 : fH[A]) A& EIR EBCKT TSR
FH) 2 R ABLEZ R FREGE — 2517 8) - I
HERBEEEN&EMFTHEEHIE
R o

v 0] 35 38 oK 2R FE 2R B om A &2 3R AR B 7R 1B
Ma - BIAEE R IBBEERELERR
S EE - R2024F3H31H - A"&ETA]
AL DA H R R E SR T IR A B R FE R R
TE 5 18 49 A177,812,00078 7T (20234 :
150,336,000/ 7T) * HH 51,000 T A
20274 B 85 (20234 : =% Jr 15 72027
FEH) - m177,761,000/8 7T (20234 :
150,336,000 70) WA FIHF A ©

SNMEEEEERAA
2024 F F 3R
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21 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 21 ERHESRERRKRES  EFTX
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES HR H MRS RIE
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade payables e B S F0R 69,411 76,359
Retention payables ERRE 2 17,559 15,399
Total trade and retention payables ENESHRBERREESETE 86,970 91,758
Accruals and other payables (Note) JE T 3R IE & H b fE 1 B

(K1at) 8,159 17,598
95,129 109,356

Note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other payables for Kiit - ZERBEITELARBEERETRE  #

T ORRREXEEREEGKANER
R R E A B 5R0R -

constructing work-in-progress, wages, legal and professional
fees and transportation costs.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date FEN B 5 IBRIEXZEH MR ST a0

was as follows: T
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 22,137 29,767
31 to 60 days 31£60H 7,893 5,653
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,829 2,774
91 to 180 days 91£180H 494 888
181 to 365 days 1812365H 876 22,991
More than 365 days 88365 H 36,182 14,286
69,411 76,359

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2024




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet,

retention payables were

classified as current liabilities based on the operating cycle.

The aging of the retention payables was as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 5 years

Over 5 years

—FR
—ERF
RFERE

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables

approximated their fair value and were denominated in the

following currencies:

HK$
MOP
Others

BT
P
Hh

e PR RME

21 ENEZRERRES  EX
B R H A REA KA ()

REREEARERRN  BENREBESREE
E;@Hﬁ HEARBAE - ENRESHER
YN

e

AlY

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTRERT TET
2,430 3,236
7,314 2,674
7,815 9,489
17,559 15,399

BNESFARRESNRAEEE QT
BERE XA TNIEEEE :

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
82,151 86,570
4,431 4,431
388 757
86,970 91,758

SHREEEARAT

2024 F F 3
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22 BORROWINGS

Non-current
Long-term bank loans

Current
Short-term bank loans
Current portion of long-term bank loans
due for repayment within
one year

Total borrowings

FERED
RHIRITER

ik
FEHIRITE K

R—FAZREEN
RHISRITERD

BN H3&E >

fERER

(@) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(i) Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

—FR
—EMF
—FhHF

22

(@)

()

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TAET
20,544 49,674
61,807 93,813
57,186 52,340
,,,,,,, 118,093 | 196,153
139,537 195,827
ERRMEHERMAT -
RITEA
BITERMBHBERAT -
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TR TAET
118,993 146,153
11,633 47,946
8,911 1,728
139,537 195,827
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e PR RME

22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b) The weighted average interest rates were as follows:

RHIRITER
RHRITER

Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans

(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

(e) The Group’s banking facilities are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities comprise:

Secured BHEA
Unsecured AR
(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain subsidiaries as

at 31 March 2024 (2023: same); and

(if) certain plant and equipment of the Group as detailed in
note 14.

22

(d)

(i)

B (&)

MR ENT -

2024
HK$°000
TR

6.4%
6.6%

2023
HK$'000
TET

4.8%
3.8%

AEBEROREEA TGS

18 :
2024
HK$’000
TER

139,537

2023
HK$’'000
THET

195,827

HRITRFZEL FEX - AEEH

15ﬂ$@@ﬁﬁi $@ﬁ%ﬁ
AEEMIRITEEESTFEN B
FREEREATRE:
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
37,730 22,014
101,807 173,813
139,537 195,827
R2024438318  HETHEA

A SR RO IR B PE (R (20234 - 4

R R

AEBZE TR MR

E14) o

&t (FF 5B

“HREEEERDHE

2024 F F 3
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23 AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

On 20 June 2022, the Group has obtained a loan from a
related company amounting to HK$100,000,000. During the
year, the loan repayment has been extended for one year. As
at 31 March 2024, the amount due to a related company is
unsecured and repayable on 30 June 2025 (2023: the amount
due to a related company is unsecured and repayable on 30
June 2024).

The effective interest rate per annum at 31 March 2024 was
6.6% (20283: 4.4%).

24 COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, there was no capital
expenditure contracted but not yet incurred.

25 CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has given guarantees on
performance bond of HK$29,100,000 (2023: HK$36,570,000)
in respect of one construction contract of the Group in its
ordinary course of business (2023: two). The performance
bond is expected to be released in accordance with the terms
of the respective construction contract.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024

23 BEN-—EBEBEQFRE

R2022%F6 208 - ANEEH — A BB
2 7] B 13100,000,0005 TTE 58 - R A4
B -BEREEHELER —F - R2024F3
A318 - B — QA R 5k IE A &K
KA R2025F6 A30H (832 (20234 : &
~F — A B A R SR IE A EE R AN 2024
F6A30HERE) -

R2024F3H31H K B F F X 56.6%
(20234 : 4.4%) »

24  EIE

B AN

PR20244F 20233 A31H @ HEEE T4
BEREEZEARRL

25 HAREE

MR2024F3A31H  AEBHEBA
SEBFEKBEBEAN—EHEEELAY
(2023%F : MIE) WEARHELBRE
29,100,00078 7T (20234 : 36,570,000/
TL) ° ZERAR KTEET ISR IR AR FE R
B R R ERBR o
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 HZEBEHRERME
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net cash (@) M PS5 B B 48 B K 2 E RSP R IR
used in operations: IR AR ¢
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before income tax BRFT1S B AT ES 18 (29,380) (31,010
Depreciation of plant and equipment e KRBT E (Mt 14)

(note 14) 27,962 26,172
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 13) (L FR#EEEFE (H:113) 4,656 8,384
Reversal of provision for impairment of EWE A MRE € RE

trade and retention receivables, net BER D — 558 - (7,342)
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment e AR 2 SR e e (BT AE6)

(note 6) (1) (1)
Write-off of plant and equipment (note 6) S AR N R A (KT A6 435 161
Finance income (note 8) B IS UR A (f717£8) (4,568) (2,559)
Finance costs (note 8) W ER(HZ8) 15,408 9,530

14,512 3,341
Changes in working capital: LEEEE !
— trade and retention receivables — W E 5 HIERIRE 31,427 (44,967)
— deposits, prepayments and —&e  BARER
other receivables H & U 5k TE (43) 2,323

— contract assets —ENEE (46,779) (33,817)

— trade and retention payables —-ENESHRERREBS (4,788) 21,398

— accruals and other payables — FEET R K H b fE 5 FR0E (9,439) 4,037
Net cash used in operations KEEE AR 55 (15,110) (47,685)

SHNEEEEERAF
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 SEBELERERMET (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)  Net debt reconciliation o) FEBEHE

This section sets out the reconciliation of liability from financing RETEI 2 EFENRMEFTHEEZ
activity for each of the years presented. BENYHE-

Liabilities from financing activities

RAEHEECAR

Amount

Amount due to

Lease  Short-term  Long-term due to a related
liabilities  bank loans  bank loans directors company Total

fEfi—Fd

2 RE  ENEZE BHRAF
HERRE  BRAOEX  BAEX B ;B &3

HK$000  HK$000  HK000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$'000
TR AT AT TR Thr TR

As at 1 April 2022 1202284 A1H (12,600) (82,483) (15,397) (30,000) - (140,480)
Cash flows: B
- Principal element of lease payments ~ —BEN R AL HH 9,062 - - - = 9,062
- Drawdown of bank loans -REBTER - (148,675)  (100,000) - - (248,675)
- Repayment of bank loans -BRERAER - 187,345 13,383 - - 150,728
- Repayment to a director -RE-%E%HH - - - 30,000 - 30,000
- Drawdown from a related company ~ ——HEBA AR M52 (100,000)  (100,000)
Non-cash flows: FHE
- Addltion - lease -RE-HE (13,936) - - - - (13,936)
As at 31 March 2023 R2023%F3A31H (17,474) (93,813) (102,014) - (100,000) (318,301)

1 32 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 SEBEERERWE(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(o)  Net debt reconciliation (Continued) ) TFEBHERGE)

Liabilities from financing activities

METHELCERE
Amount
due to
Lease  Short-term  Long-term a related
liabilities  bank loans  bank loans company Total
Eff -8
bk RE N
HESE RITER RITER ;E h

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEn TiERn TiER

As at 1 April 2023 12023F4A1H (17,474) (93,813) (102,014) (100,000) (313,301)
Cash flows: BT

- Principal element of lease payments  —# &1 & A& 4 25 6,682 - - - 6,682

- Drawdown of bank loans -RBBRITER - (155,762) (30,743) - (186,505)

- Repayment of bank loans -ERRITER - 187,768 55,027 - 242,795
Non-cash flows: HRLT -

- Addition - lease -AE-HE (5,308) - - - (5,308)
As at 31 March 2024 1R2024F3A31H (16,100) (61,807) (77,730) (100,000) (255,637)
(c) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (c) REARERERT @ LEHE K

from disposal of plant and equipment comprise: RS ERE S

2024 2023

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FTAT

Net book amount (note 14) BREVFE (At 14) - -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment & # i LB EHO W S

(note 6) (H1i#6) 1 1
Cash proceeds from sales of HERRREENRE

plant and equipment FriS 3k 18 1 1

SMEEEEERAT
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27

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party
in holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or joint control. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

(a)

The directors of the Company

the following companies were related parties that had
transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party
REALRRE

Mr. CM Lau
2R AR ot A&
Cheer Crown Limited

=HERAA

Cheer Crown Property Holdings
Limited

FEMEZERERD

Cheer Profit Intematlonal Enterprise
Limited

EFEEREEARAA

Cheer Wealth International Development
Limited

EREREREGR A A

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAGEARAA
Healthy World Investment Limited
RERERR AT
Long Ascent Development Limited
RAERERAF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

27 BBALXS

BAEE A TR ARENIES - KREEHBIRE
ﬁﬁT%ﬁ@TﬁW&éﬁﬁ@%ﬂmA

TITEEAFENNAL  BERERFEER
B E 2 B E 7y o) A [0 3R = e ki

MOAL: AIFAEHEIRETNENE
BREEDNRESEOAL - XERZEHIK
BE B A LT AR SRR A L - BARE

ATAIREASEMEL -
are of the view that @ AREEERR - TIAAATHA

AEBETRIRRUEA EHD
BARE AL

Relationship with the Group
BEASENER

Director of the Company

RNRARES

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE S EEREGNER QR

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. CM Lau

HERAEE 2 EERHAENHEER T

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group
and their family member

HAKREETESRARGKNE R EHEF BB LT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group
and their family member

HAKBETEERARGKKEZEHG N QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group
and their family member

HAEBEETESRARGKKEZERGHNBE AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group

BHAEEETEE2EHANHE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group

HAEEETEF2EBRENHEB AT
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27

(@) (Continued)

Sky Ease Holdings Limited

REEBRBRRA
Sam Woo Ship Bunding Limited

=FHEM B R A A

Redland Precast Concrete Products
Limited

FERERERTEMERAR

Redland Precast Concrete Products
(China) Limited

PETEGRETER (RE) BRAF

(b) Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions were carried out
with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Rental expenses paid to related parties

recognised in statement of comprehensive

income:
Rental expenses to Cheer Crown Property
Holdings Limited (note i and vii)

Rental expenses to East Ascent Enterprise Limited

(note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited (note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Long Ascent Development
Limited (note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited (note ii and vii)

Rental expenses to Healthy World Investment
Limited (note ii and vii)

e PR RME

BBALRS (&)
@  (#&)

A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE2EREONBEE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of the Group
and their family member

HAKREETESFRERGEKNEZEHEB VBB LA
A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERALEE S EHEA MDA
A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERBEEZEHEA B A A
(b) X5

&%EA%?é}ﬁﬁﬁ%i&%%iiﬁtﬁﬂ"ﬁﬁﬁ§?§%§9h’
ARER B ELBE B A AR EE T h E O R R AE

TR 5
2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FTHT
REEWRBRHPERN
ERHEBALHSHRS :
IR TFREHELERERADA
B & B (f7aiRvi) 4,320 2,880
IRTFRACEERAA
#)38 & R X (B a2 Rvii) 46 30
TRTENEBREERRAAF
8B F X (4 ik vi) 46 30
IHFEAZEERAR
838 & R (B2 ki) 600 400
YTHTFEREBRERERAA
#)38 & R X (B a2 Rvii) 876 584
TR TREREFRAT
82 F X (H ik vi) 600 400
SHEEEEARA T

2024 F F 3R
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27 BEBALRS (&)
(b) Transactions (Continued) (b) 5 (&)
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER AT
Payments paid to related parties under HESEETENEBALRE:
lease liabilities:
Payments to Cheer Crown Property Holdings SN FREMELERAR D 76 TIE
Limited (note i) (f1&ti) - 720
Payments to East Ascent Enterprise Limited XN FRACEERDRIHNFKE
(note i) (B &tii) - 15
Payments to Cheer Profit International Enterprise 4 FEF BB £ B[R A RIK A
Limited (note i) (Kt i) - 15
Payments to Long Ascent Development Limited %t PRI ZERER D 7 ZIE
(note ii) (B &tii) - 200
Payments to Cheer Wealth International XA TFERERERARAASNRIE
Development Limited (note i) (K &tii) - 292
Payments to Healthy World Investment Limited SN FREREERARNFA
(note i) (Ht i) - 200
Expense paid/payable to a related party: B/ ENEBALREY:
Motor vehicle purchased from Redland Precast RAYEBEEERTERERAR
Concrete Products Limited (note iii and note vii)  He8E 58 (ff i R A1 2 vii) 40 -
Interest expense paid/payable to BN/ EA=MERBERAR
Sam Woo Ship Building Limited (note iv and vi) — H 8.8 3z (4 stivkvii) 6,572 3,305
Materials cost paid to Redland Precast Concrete Xt FH B 48 8% + &M (T E)
Products (China) Limited (note v and note vii) BIR D RIMM B (4 v & vi) - 2,750
Revenue received from a related party: REBEBALKRA:
Sales proceeds of plant and equipment received  HEREHEEEERE T ES
from Redland Precast Concrete Products BRI K ERED
Limited (note vi and vii) P15 2R (F7 i vikvii) - 1

1 36 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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()

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

Note iv:

Note v:

Note vi:

Note vii:

(©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Transactions (Continued)

Rental for storage of machinery and equipment are based
on terms pursuant to the tenancy agreements as mutually
agreed by the relevant parties.

Rental for directors’ quarters are based on terms pursuant
to the tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.

A motor vehicle was purchased from a related company,
Redland Precast Concrete Products Limited.

Interest expense was payable to a related company, Sam
Woo Ship Building Limited, in respect of the amount due to
a related company.

Materials cost was paid to a related company, Redland
Precast Concrete Products (China) Limited.

Sales of plant and equipment was received from a related
company, Redland Precast Concrete Products Limited.

This relating party transaction also constitutes continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, but its size is such that the transaction was
exempt from the disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements for continuing connected transaction.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and

non-executive) of the Group. The compensation paid or

payable to key management for employee services is disclosed
in note 30(a).

27

(0)

it -

B i -

Wi iii -

KBiativ -

Biatv -

Hiatvi

Bt atvii

(©

e PR RME

BABALXS (&)

X5 (&)

RIEFREM R RENES T E
KB R 77 H B 15 E BB L8 &

Eo
A °

RIFEEBEENHESHER AR
& 77 F R W5 7 B9 A A9 B9 55K

FIAARE & Bl B TR SR B + & m
BRARHRETE -

FERE T EES — R EB A A
SR IE T FE 15 BB A B = TS i BR
BRAR] -

ME PR A TS S A F BB X R AP B
BRERIEMTE)ERAF -

S A KRR T R B BB
At FRRRR L EMBRAR

ZEBHA TR S MBER ETR
BIE14AE N E R 2 IHBERER
5 BZEXSEEEE  BR
A 0 P 1% BE AN IR SR AL IR T B
BREABERS -

TEEEABHMH

IEEEBEABRRASEES (ITRIEH
17) - EERBENHEMNTEEEEA
B R BN P TES0() R B ©

SNMEEEEERAA
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27 BBALTXES(E)
(d) Balance — non-trade (d) EH-FEEH
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Payable to a related company: P — BB EE D B FRIE -
Sam Woo Ship Building Limited (note 23)  =FH{E M A R 2 7l
(K1:#23) 100,000 100,000
28 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 28 BREBRAF
Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings Limited, & 12 [E 38 ASilver Bright Holdings Limited

a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the (—HREBEZHESEMKINAR) B
ultimate holding company of the Group, which is a company REB R HEIER AR » 7R2024F3 831
indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the beneficiary of AZARHAURBHRIZ LTI ARS = AN
which was Ms. Leung Lai So as at 31 March 2024. EEEEES -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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29 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 29 AFXAFMNEEEBRRFEHREEZD
OF THE COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) KARRIMEEBER
2024 2023
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3T FHET FAET
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RH B AR E 5,927 5,927
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TR 5RIR 98 81
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — RIS B A Rl A 296,111 266,111
Cash and cash equivalents HeERkBREEEY 1,187 31,422
Income tax recoverable AT E AT ISR 4 1
,,,,,,, 297,400 297,615
Total assets EE#E 303,327 303,542
Equity ER
Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital fi% A< 4,200 4,200
Reserves B 29(b) 199,110 199,325
Total equity X 203,310 203,525
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Amount due to a related company JE - — B B Bt A B 5078 23 100,000 100,000
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 5K I8 & H b e 1~ 5B AT
Total liabilities aEeE 100,017 = 100,017
Total equity and liabilities EELaEHaE 303,327 303,542

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board KARMEEBBREN2024F6 827 H

of Directors on 27 June 2024 and were signed on its behalf. BESeHE  YHTIIALTRRES -
Lau Chun Ming Lau Pui Shan
24w A 2151
Director Director
EE EE
SHMEEEEER

A 7]
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29 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 29 RAATNEEERBERBEES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) KRB EEES
Retained
earnings/
Share Other (Accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
RERF,/
R &E HitrfiE (REtE#R) @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET THT TET TET
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 194,087 5,927 276 200,290
Loss for the year FEEBR = = (965) (969)
At 31 March 2023 202353 A31H 194,087 5,927 (689) 199,325
Loss for the year FEER - - (215) (219)
At 31 March 2024 R2024F3A31H 194,087 5,927 (904) 199,110

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference AN B R E A R R PR = FI(BVIR &

between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over the EFEBBEARNR ABREAMEEMNEIT
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in BRAEERNEZEE -
exchange thereof.

140 SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director of the Company is set out

below:

Executive directors
Mr. CM Lau®

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok*
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So (Note)

Independent non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum

Mr. Ip Tin Cheg, Amold

Mr. Pang Tat Choi, Paul

unEs

BRe 4
SRE L
iy
REBLL Kt

BUFufES
THRHR
RERRE
EXBRE
PR L

30 ESwEANEREZ

(a) =1

ARBABZEZNMEFIIWT

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HENUFIAYNALEE

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary ~ Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Eim

FOSHE]
ne B¢ BERL  EBEE EENER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER THR TER TER
- 863 - 643 - 1,506
- 910 - 600 - 1,510
- 910 - 600 - 1,510
- 494 - 324 - 818
264 - - - - 264
264 - - - - 264
264 - - - - 264
194 - - - - 194
986 3177 - 2,167 - 6,330

ZHEEEEMERA R

2024 F F 3R
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

30 EEFEIRER(E)

@ EEME@HE)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

HENRBEIANBLER
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Directors’ to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
Exm
EUSEE
g e RERL B3RS fELOEX 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TR TR TR Thn Thn
Executive directors HrES
Mr. CM Laut AR A = 863 - 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kok’ SRE R - 910 - 600 - 1510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka 8RR - 910 - 600 - 1510
Ms. Leung Lai So PEENT - 494 - 324 - 818
Independent non-executive directors BUkHnES
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick TEHE 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Chu Tak Sum AERLE 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBiE 264 - - - - 264
79 3177 - 2,167 - 6,136
# Chairman # TE

*

Chief Executive Officer

Note:

Ms. Leung Lai So passed away on 23 June 2024.

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received from the Group by these directors in their capacity as
employees to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of
the companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, none of the directors of
the Company (i) received or paid any remuneration in respect
of accepting office; (i) received or paid emoluments in respect
of services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or (iii) waived or
has agreed to waive any emolument (2023: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no consideration was
paid by the company to third parties for making available
directors’ services (2023: same).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors (2023: same).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2023:
same).
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Five Year Financial Summary

L EHBEBRE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERITEMREEND TIEEE
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as LREE BEUARESEMET -

follows.
Year ended 31 March
HESASIBHILEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$'000
Results E FET BT THET FHET AT
Revenue WA 457,875 416,854 362,514 356,211 916,831
Gross profit/(loss) EH,(E8) 31,811 (737)  (57,522) (4,053) 126,666
(Loss)/profit before KR P18 %5 Al
income tax (B8 %= (29,380)  (31,010) (104,678) (36,838) 83,679
Income tax credit/(expense) Fri5HiiK %~
(AX) 1,099 (445) 3,981 3,087 (10,661)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FE),/
i 7] (28,281) (31,455) (100,697) (33,751) 73,018

As at 31 March
MR3A31H

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR THET TAET TAET THET

Assets BE

Non-current assets EMEEE 563,177 576,523 564,370 582,223 586,788
Current assets MBEE 300,413 394,907 239,836 351,146 456,582
Total assets BEHE 863,590 971,430 804,206 933,369 1,043,370
Liabilities =L

Non-current liabilities FERBEE 172,275 204,754 57,875 60,719 69,613
Current liabilities mEBE 220,712 266,722 214,232 241,664 275,830
Total liabilities BEHEE 392,987 471,476 272,107 302,383 345,443
Total equity =B 470,603 499,954 532,099 630,986 697,927
Note: Hiat -

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial Pl ESABERSEZTFREK A —ZP
statements. 4 e
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